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OFFERING MEMORANDUM 
 

ACCREDIT MORTGAGE LTD. 
Date:  March 23, 2018 

THE ISSUER: 

Name: ACCREDIT MORTGAGE LTD. (the “Issuer”, “we”, or “us”) 

Head office:  101 – 835 View Street 
Victoria, B.C. V8W 3W8 
Phone #: 250-361-4775 Toll Free: 1-800-667-0440 
E-mail address: info@greatpacificmortgage.com 
Fax #: 250-381-1914 

Currently listed or quoted?  No.  These securities do not trade on any exchange or market. 

Reporting issuer?   No 

SEDAR filer?   No 

THE OFFERING: 

Securities offered:  Class “A” shares  

Price per security:  $0.85 per Class “A” share 

Minimum offering:    There is no minimum offering. You may be the only purchaser.   

Maximum offering:  Up to $10,000,000.  Funds available under the offering may not be sufficient 
to accomplish our proposed objectives. 

Minimum subscription amount:         There is no minimum subscription an investor must invest  

Payment terms:   Upon subscription by cheque drawn on a recognized financial institution or in  
such other manner as the Issuer in its sole discretion may accept. 
 

Proposed closing date(s):   Closings will generally occur two business days after the receipt by the Issuer of 
a completed Subscription Agreement, all related documentation and payment.  
Other closings will take place periodically on dates approved by the Issuer in its 
sole discretion with the final closing occurring upon the Issuer achieving the 
maximum offering.   

Income tax consequences:  There are important tax consequences to these securities.  See Item 6.  

Selling agent: Great Pacific Mortgage & Investments Ltd. (“Great Pacific”).  See Items 2.1, 2.3, 
2.7 and 7. 

RESALE RESTRICTIONS: 

You will be restricted from selling your securities for an indefinite period. See Item 10. 

PURCHASER’S RIGHTS: 

You have two business days after making payment to cancel your agreement to purchase these securities. If there is 
a misrepresentation in this Offering Memorandum, you have the right to sue either for damages or to cancel the 
agreement. See Item 11.  

No securities regulatory authority or regulator has assessed the merits of these securities or reviewed this 
Offering Memorandum.  Any representation to the contrary is an offence.  

THIS IS A RISKY INVESTMENT. SEE ITEM 8. 

The Subscription Agreement, Acknowledgement of Risk Form and information required under federal anti-money 
laundering and anti-terrorist financing legislation are attached hereto and should be considered part of this Offering 
Memorandum. 

Warning:  A holder of shares in the Issuer is not entitled to borrow money from the Issuer or covenant the 
payment of money borrowed from the Issuer by other persons.  Accordingly, when subscribing for shares 
each purchaser represents and warrants to the Issuer that (s)he or it is not a borrower of money from, or a 
covenantor for the payment of money borrowed by other persons from the Issuer, and (s)he or it will not, as 
long as (s)he or it is a holder of shares of the Issuer, become such a borrower or covenantor. 
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This Offering Memorandum has been prepared by the Issuer in connection with the distribution of securities 
of the Issuer on a private placement basis pursuant to exemptions from applicable prospectus requirements 
under National Instrument 45-106F2 Offering Memorandum for Non-Qualifying Issuers. 
To ensure you understand the information contained herein, we recommend you consult such legal, tax, 
investment or other advisers as you see fit, especially to confirm the eligibility of the securities offered 
herein for your Registered Retirement Savings Plan and other Tax Deferred or Savings Plans. 
This Offering Memorandum is not, and is not intended to be, considered a prospectus or public offering 
under the securities or similar legislation of any jurisdiction in Canada, neither is it an advertisement for the 
sale of the securities described herein. 
The information and representations contained herein constitute the basis on which the securities described 
herein are offered for sale by the Issuer. No other information or representations whether oral or written, 
made by any person or persons have been authorized by the Issuer and, if made, they cannot be relied on. 
The business and affairs of the Issuer are dynamic and change daily in the course of normal operations, the 
information in this document is accurate as at the date hereof. Any material change in the nature of the 
Issuer’s business and operations may result in the withdrawal, amendment and/or updating of this Offering 
Memorandum. 
The securities described herein are offered only in those jurisdictions, and to those persons, where, and to 
whom, they may be lawfully offered for sale.  As at the date of this Offering Memorandum, subscriptions will 
only be accepted from persons resident in the Provinces of British Columbia. A Subscription Agreement and 
related documentation must be completed and provided to the Issuer, along with payment. 
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Offering Memorandum contains forward-looking statements and information within the meaning of applicable 
securities laws, which reflect current expectations of management of the Issuer regarding future events or the 
Issuer’s future performance. When used in this Offering Memorandum, such statements and information use words 
such as “may”, “will”, “expect”, “believes”, “plan”, “could”, “should”, “anticipate”, “continue”, “estimate”, “intend”, 
“potential”, “predict”, “project”, and other similar terminology. All statements other than statements of historical fact 
contained in this Offering Memorandum may be forward-looking statements or information. Forward-looking 
statements and information involve significant known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, are not and 
should not be read as guarantees of future performance or results, and will not necessarily be accurate indications of 
whether such results will be achieved. Such risks, uncertainties and other factors could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements and information, including, but not limited to, the 
factors discussed under Item 8. The forward-looking statements and information in this Offering Memorandum are 
based on certain key expectations and assumptions made by the Issuer. Although the forward-looking statements 
and information contained in this Offering Memorandum are based upon what the Issuer believes are reasonable 
expectations and assumptions, undue reliance should not be placed on the forward-looking statements and 
information because the Issuer cannot assure investors that such expectations or assumptions are correct or that 
actual results will be consistent with these forward-looking statements. 
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Item 1:  USE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS 

1.1 Funds – The available funds from this offering are as follows: 

  Assuming min. 
offering  

Assuming max. 
offering  

A  Amount to be raised by this offering  $ 0.00 $ 30,000,000.00 

B  Selling commissions and fees  $ 0.00 $                 0.001 

C  Estimated offering costs (e.g., legal, accounting, audit)  $ 0.00 $        5,000.00 

D  Available funds: D = A -(B+C)  $ 0.00 $ 29,995,000.00 

E Additional sources of funding required $ 0.00 $                 0.00 

F Working capital deficiency $ 0.00 $                 0.00 

G Total proceeds available: H = (D+E) – F $ 0.00 $ 29,995,000.00 

1. See Item 7 for a description of the commissions and fees payable by investors or the Issuer. 

1.2 Use of Available Funds - The following table provides a detailed breakdown of how the Issuer will use the 
available funds from this offering. None of the net proceeds will be paid to a related party other than fees payable to 
Great Pacific under the Financial Services Contract (as defined below) described under Item 2.7.   

Description of intended use of available funds listed in 
order of priority 
 

Assuming min. 
offering 

Assuming max. 
offering 

At least 50% of the net proceeds will be invested in residential 
mortgages and residential construction mortgages or held in 
cash or deposits with approved depositories. 

$ 0.00 $14,997,500 to 
$29,995,000.00 

Up to 50% of the net proceeds may be invested in industrial 
and commercial mortgages, land, or other eligible properties as 
defined under the National Housing Act (Canada), provided in 
all cases that such assets  are permitted  for mortgage 
investment corporations by the Income Tax Act (Canada) 

$ 0.00 $0.00 to 
$14,997,500.00 

Total $0.00 $29,995,000.00 
 
Note: Because the Issuer has no working capital deficiency, has no plans to combine the funds raised through this 
offering with other sources, and does not plan to pay fees or commissions, other than to Great Pacific as noted 
herein, except in the circumstances noted in Item 7, the table above fully describes the intended use of funds 
received by the Issuer under this offering. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

1.3 Reallocation - We intend to spend the net proceeds as stated. We will reallocate funds only for sound 
business reasons. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

Item 2:  BUSINESS OF ACCREDIT MORTGAGE LTD. 

2.1 Structure - Accredit Mortgage Ltd. (defined above as the “Issuer”, “we” or “us”) was incorporated under the 
Company Act (British Columbia) on May 26, 1994 under the name ACCREDIT MORTGAGE LTD., and was 
transitioned under the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) on October 27, 2004.  The registered and 
records offices of the Issuer are at 101 – 835 View Street, Victoria, British Columbia, V8W 3W8.   

The financial services agent of the Issuer, Great Pacific Mortgage & Investments Ltd. (defined above as “Great 
Pacific”), is registered in British Columbia.  

The Issuer is registered to carry on business as a mortgage investment corporation (a “MIC”) in the Province of 
British Columbia by the Ministry of Finance under the Mortgage Brokers Act (British Columbia) (Certificate Number 
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X027131).  The Issuer may register, where required, to carry on business as a MIC in other provinces of Canada 
when, in its sole discretion, business conditions justify the expansion.  The Office of the Registrar of Mortgage 
Brokers at the Financial Institutions Commission regulates the mortgage brokering and lending activities of Mortgage 
Investment Corporations (MICs) under the Mortgage Brokers Act in British Columbia.  The Registrar and the 
Mortgage Brokers Act do not regulate the capital raising and investment marketing activities of MICs which are 
subject to securities legislation and regulation. 

The Issuer, in consultation with its legal advisers, has concluded that it is not an “investment fund” within the meaning 
of applicable securities laws in British Columbia, and that no person or company involved in advising the Issuer is in 
the business of advising in securities within the meaning of applicable securities laws.  Therefore, none of the Issuer, 
Great Pacific or any other persons or companies employed by the Issuer or Great Pacific, involved in managing the 
business of the Issuer, or involved in advising the Issuer is registered or intends to seek registration with securities 
regulators as an investment fund manager or an adviser or in any other similar capacity.   

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

2.2 Our Business - The Issuer operates as a MIC under the Income Tax Act (Canada).  The Issuer will fund 
mortgage loans with a higher risk level than conventional lenders such as banks, credit unions and trust companies.  
A risk premium in the form of higher rates of interest and/or lender fees is charged for the extra administration and 
risk associated with atypical and non-standard mortgage loans. Its business is to obtain a source of income by 
investing in a portfolio of residential, commercial, construction and other mortgages.  The Issuer had a retained 
earnings deficit (loss carry forward) at fiscal year-end 2017 of $19.7 million.  It is the objective of the Issuer to utilize 
these losses prior to the payment of any dividends to shareholders.  The effect of applying future earnings of Accredit 
will be the increase in the net asset value of the Class ‘A’ Shares.  The Issuer may employ leverage, as permitted by 
applicable legislation. It is not currently using the permitted leverage. 

Under the Income Tax Act, MICs do not pay income taxes provided all of the net income is paid to the shareholders.  
Accredit may pay dividends to shareholders as declared by the Board of Directors.  These dividends would be paid 
from cash in the company’s bank account.  Some shareholders might elect to have the dividend reinvested into 
further shares of the company.  Cash in the bank account arises from several sources including interest payments 
from outstanding mortgage loans, repayment of mortgages and funds as provided by new share purchases.  
Payment of dividends is unlikely for the foreseeable future.  See paragraphs 2.3 and 2.4 below.   

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

     2.2 (a)   Capital Recovery – In the years following the 2008 financial crisis, Accredit has accumulated 
approximately $20 million in losses as represented by the retained earnings deficit. These losses were as a result of 
payment of dividends to shareholders ($14,493,467) along with write downs of mortgages and other assets held in 
the portfolio. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

     2.2 (b)   The Plan - Accredit will continue to operate as a mortgage investment corporation (MIC). However, until 
the retained earnings deficit has been depleted, all future earnings generated from operations will not be distributed 
to shareholders but will be applied to reduce the retained earnings deficit. The effect of this will be to increase the net 
asset value of the class ‘A’ shares. From a taxation perspective, dividend income that would otherwise attract tax as 
interest income will now be taxed as capital gain at the time of disposition of the shares. Once the retained earnings 
deficit is eliminated, the net income will be distributed to shareholders as fully taxable income.  The timing of this 
transition will be dependent upon the amount of capital available to be invested into mortgage investments, the ability 
of Great Pacific to source qualified mortgage investments and the yield that these investments generate. Once the 
retained earnings deficit is eliminated, Accredit will recommence the payment of dividends. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

     2.3  Development of Business - The Issuer has contracted Great Pacific to source qualified investments and 
invest money in mortgages on behalf of the Issuer and administer same.  See Item 2.7 for further information 
regarding the services provided to the Issuer by Great Pacific. 

Great Pacific intends to develop the Issuer’s business through personal prospecting by its principals and brokers, 
references by satisfied clients or their professional advisers, limited media advertising and a website.   

Great Pacific also works with other mortgage brokers who seek its assistance and/or advice. 

The markets in which the MICs serviced by Great Pacific function rely on it locating prospective borrowers who 
cannot or do not wish to use conventional lending institutions. This business is essentially short term, higher interest, 
secured lending. It is interest rate driven.  



 

- 4 - 

    

Sourcing this business requires contact with developers, builders, realtors and others directly or indirectly. It also 
receives referrals from chartered banks, credit unions and other regulated lenders where a proposal does not fit their 
permitted or self-defined lending patterns. 

This market is more directly responsive to current economic conditions than institutional lending. It is also dependent 
on either investors wishing to take advantage of the Income Tax Act (Canada) encouragement of self-directed RRIFs, 
RRSPs, RESPs and TFSAs or investors seeking a high rate of interest as opposed to capital gains.   

The directors may declare a dividend on one class of shares to the exclusion of another class of shares. 

As of March 23, 2018, the Issuer had a total of 276 Class “A” shareholders and the number of Class “A” shares 
outstanding was 31,576,321. 

Attached to this Offering Memorandum as Addendum B is a list of mortgages and other assets contained in Issuer’s 
portfolio as of the date of this Offering Memorandum.   

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

     2.4 Long Term Objectives - The long term objective of the Issuer is to provide a return to its shareholders. As 
the rate of return is dependent on, but not limited to, economic, political and legal factors which may affect the 
mortgage market, all of which are beyond the control of the Issuer, it will seek mortgages which offer high rates of 
interest under the conditions existing at the time of the loan. The time frame in which the Issuer works is continuous. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

     2.5 Short Term Objectives and How We Intend to Achieve Them - The short term objective of the Issuer is to 
acquire and maintain a portfolio of investments that generates a return for shareholders. The Issuer has contracted 
Great Pacific to source qualified investments and invest money in mortgages on behalf of the Issuer and administer 
the portfolio. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

     2.6 Insufficient Proceeds - Because the Issuer will only make investments using available funds, the Issuer 
does not expect that it will be in a position where it does not have sufficient funds to accomplish its proposed 
objectives.  However, it is possible that the funds available as a result of this offering will not be sufficient to 
accomplish the Issuer’s objectives and there is no assurance that alternative financing will be available.   

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

     2.7 Material Agreements – Under the terms of an agreement dated January 30, 2006 (the “Financial Services 
Contract”) between Great Pacific and the Issuer, Great Pacific is solely responsible for sourcing mortgage 
investments and managing the operations of the Issuer in accordance with the Issuer’s investment policies and is 
responsible, among other things, for: 

(a) originating and administering mortgages and other security interest in real property; 

(b) providing financial services for the operations of the Issuer including operating and administering 
general security agreements and other forms of security of the Issuer; and 

The Financial Services Contract has an indefinite term, but may be terminated upon one of the following events: 

(a) if any proceedings in insolvency, bankruptcy, receivership or liquidation are taken against either 
party; 

(b) if either party makes an assignment for the benefit of any creditors or commits an act of bankruptcy 
within the meaning of the Bankruptcy Act (Canada); 

(c) upon 90 days written notice by either party; or 

(d) by mutual consent, in writing, of the Issuer and Great Pacific. 

Great Pacific is not liable to the Issuer for any loss caused by Great Pacific in carrying out its duties under the 
Financial Services Contract unless the loss resulted from the negligence, wilful misconduct or dishonesty of Great 
Pacific, its officers, employees or agents in the performance of its duties.  Furthermore, the Issuer has agreed to 
indemnify and save Great Pacific harmless in the event that Great Pacific suffers a loss of any nature whatsoever in 
connection with the performance of its duties under the Financial Services Contract, except where such loss resulted 
from the negligence, wilful misconduct or dishonesty of Great Pacific or its officers, employees or agents. 

The directors of Great Pacific are Jeffery A. Moses and Walter R. Neufeld who collectively have over 45 years’ 
experience in managing mortgage portfolios.  

As consideration for the services provided by Great Pacific under the Financial Services Contract, the Issuer has 
agreed to pay Great Pacific an annual fee not to exceed 2.0% of the yearly total assets under management.  This fee 
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is paid monthly on the 1st day of each month on the basis of the principal balance outstanding in the portfolio on the 
last business day of the preceding month.  

Great Pacific is also entitled to charge brokerage fees, lenders’ fees, commitment fees, extension fees, renewal fees, 
NSF fees, administration fees and similar fees to borrowers in respect of any mortgage loans acquired by the Issuer, 
and is entitled to be reimbursed by the Issuer for disbursements incurred by Great Pacific in fulfilling its obligations 
under the Financial Services Contract. 

The office and overhead costs incurred by Great Pacific in discharging its obligations under the Financial Services 
Contract (including, but not limited to, staffing and the provision of premises) are payable by Great Pacific, except that 
costs of licensing, auditing the Issuer’s financial statements, shareholder communications, marketing, errors and 
omissions insurance and director’s liability insurance may be borne by the Issuer.   

There are no other material agreements to which the Issuer is a party. 

Great Pacific is owned by Walter Neufeld and Jeffery Moses through holding companies over which they have voting 
control.  These individuals are also directors of the Issuer and in aggregate indirectly own 50% of the issued and 
outstanding Class “B” shares of the Issuer.  See Item 3.1.  Given this relationship, a number of potential conflicts exist 
including the following: 

(a) Other clients seeking the assistance of Great Pacific in sourcing mortgages, including other MICs 
having contractual relationships with Great Pacific, are in competition with the Issuer. 

(b) Current directors and officers of, and a broker employed by, Great Pacific are or may be 
shareholders, directors and officers of the Issuer and of one other MIC employing Great Pacific as 
their financial services agent. 

(c) The Class “B” shareholders of the Issuer could use their voting power to change the management 
and other policies of the Issuer in a manner that may be adverse to the interests of Class “A” 
shareholders. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

Item 3:  DIRECTORS, MANAGEMENT, PROMOTERS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS 

3.1 Compensation and Securities Held - The following table, provides specified information about each 
director, officer and promoter of the Issuer and each person who, directly or indirectly, beneficially owns or controls 
10% or more of any class of voting securities of the Issuer (a “principal holder”) as at the date of this Offering 
Memorandum. If the principal holder is not an individual, the table records the name of any person or company that, 
directly or indirectly, beneficially owns or controls more than 50% of the voting rights of the principal holder.   

Name and 
municipality of 
principal residence 

Positions held 
and the date of 
obtaining that 
position 

Compensation paid by 
Issuer or related party 
in the most recently 
completed financial 
year and the 
compensation 
anticipated to be paid 
in the current financial 
year 

Number, type and 
percentage of 
securities of the 
Issuer held after 
completion of min. 
offering* 

Number, type and 
percentage of 
securities of the 
Issuer held after 
completion of max. 
offering* 

Jeffery A. Moses1,2,3,12 

Victoria, BC  
Director since 
May 1994 

Great Pacific pays a 
portion of the fees it 
receives from the Issuer 
(see Item 2.7) to Jeffery 
A. Moses.  In the fiscal 
year ending Sept. 30, 
2017, the amount paid 
was $93,693.78.  It can 
be expected that a 
similar amount will be 
paid for the fiscal year 
ending Sept. 30, 2018. 

68,000 Class “B” 
shares (25%)  

1,217,423 Class “A” 
shares (3.84%) 

Unknown3 
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Name and 
municipality of 
principal residence 

Positions held 
and the date of 
obtaining that 
position 

Compensation paid by 
Issuer or related party 
in the most recently 
completed financial 
year and the 
compensation 
anticipated to be paid 
in the current financial 
year 

Number, type and 
percentage of 
securities of the 
Issuer held after 
completion of min. 
offering* 

Number, type and 
percentage of 
securities of the 
Issuer held after 
completion of max. 
offering* 

Walter R. Neufeld 
1,4,5,12 

Victoria, BC 

Director since 
May 1994  

Great Pacific pays a 
portion of the fees it 
receives from the Issuer 
(see Item 2.7) to Walter 
R. Neufeld.  In the fiscal 
year ending Sept. 30, 
2017, the amount paid 
was $93,693.78.  It can 
be expected that a 
similar amount will be 
paid for the fiscal year 
ending Sept. 30, 2018. 

68,000 Class “B” 
shares (25%)  

694,313 Class “A” 
shares (2.18%) 

Unknown5 

Paul E. Croy 6,12 
Victoria, BC 

Director since 
March 1, 2005 

Accredit Mortgage Ltd. 
pays a director fee to 
Paul E. Croy.  In the 
fiscal year ending Sept. 
30, 2017, the amount 
was $30,000.00.  It can 
be expected that 
$24,000.00 will be paid 
to Mr. Croy for the fiscal 
year ending Sept. 30, 
2018 

17,582 Class “A” 
shares (0.05%) 

Unknown6 

Damian A. Sowa 7,12 Director since 
December, 2016 

Accredit Mortgage Ltd. 
pays a director fee to 
Damian A. Sowa.  In the 
fiscal year ending Sept. 
30, 2017, the amount 
was $12,000.00.  It can 
be expected that 
$15,000.00 will be paid 
to Mr. Sowa for the fiscal 
year ending Sept. 30, 
2018 

 Unknown 7 

Aaltje van Grootheest 
8 

Director since 
December, 2017 

Accredit Mortgage Ltd. 
pays a director fee to 
Aaltje van Grootheest.  
In the fiscal year ending 
Sept. 30, 2018, the 
amount will be 
approximately 
$7,000.00. 

193,745 Class “A” 
shares (0.6%) 

Unknown 8 

Rory H. Campbell1,9,10 

Victoria, BC 
  68,000 Class “B” 

shares (25%)  
Unknown10 

 
Notes:   
* The percentages referenced are of the issued and outstanding shares of each class on the date of this 
Offering Memorandum. 
1.  As a holder of Class “B” shares, this shareholder receives a portion of any Class “B” share dividend 
declared.  To date, Class “B” share dividends have only been declared as part of the yearend and/or special dividend, 
which is split between the Class “B” shareholders (45%), and the Class “A” shareholders (55%).  There have been no 
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dividends declared or paid on Class “B” shares during the 12 months preceding the date of this Offering 
Memorandum.  
2.  Of these shares, 68,000 Class “B” shares and 500,000 Class “A” shares are held through 1132203 B.C. Ltd.  
Jeffery A. Moses directly or indirectly beneficially owns or controls more than 50% of the voting rights of 1132203 
B.C. Ltd. 
3.  Jeffery A. Moses may acquire additional Class “A” shares under this Offering Memorandum; however, the 
number of Class “A” shares, if any, which may be acquired by Mr. Moses is not known.  Mr. Moses may dispose of 
Class “A” shares held by him, however the number which he may dispose of, if any, is unknown. 
4.  Of these shares, 68,000 Class “B” shares and 356,251 Class “A” shares are held through Lone Eagle 
Holdings Ltd. and 8,287 Class “A” shares are held through WKJ Holdings Ltd.  Walter R. Neufeld directly or indirectly 
beneficially owns or controls more than 50% of the voting rights of Lone Eagle Holdings Ltd. and WKJ Holdings Ltd.    
5.  Walter R. Neufeld may acquire additional Class “A” shares under this Offering Memorandum; however, the 
number of Class “A” shares, if any, which may be acquired by Mr. Neufeld is not known.  Mr. Neufeld may dispose of 
Class “A” shares held by him, however the number which he may dispose of, if any, is unknown.  
6.  Paul E. Croy may acquire additional Class “A” shares under this Offering Memorandum; however, the 
number of Class “A” shares, if any, which may be acquired by Mr. Croy is not known.  Mr. Croy may dispose of Class 
“A” shares held by him, however the number which he may dispose of, if any, is unknown. 
7. Damian A. Sowa may acquire additional Class “A” shares under this Offering Memorandum; however, the 
number of Class “A” shares, if any, which may be acquired by Mr. Sowa is not known.  Mr. Sowa may dispose of 
Class “A” shares held by him, however the number which he may dispose of, if any, is unknown. 
8. Aaltje van Grootheest may acquire additional Class “A” shares under this Offering Memorandum; however, 
the number of Class “A” shares, if any, which may be acquired by Ms van Grootheest is not known.  Ms van 
Grootheest may dispose of Class “A” shares held by her, however the number which she may dispose of, if any, is 
unknown. 
9.  Of these shares, 68,000 Class “B” shares are held through 598016 B.C. Ltd.  Rory H. Campbell directly or 
indirectly beneficially owns or controls more than 50% of the voting rights of 598016 B.C. Ltd.    
10.  Rory H. Campbell may acquire additional Class “A” shares under this Offering Memorandum; however, the 
number of Class “A” shares, if any, which may be acquired by Mr. Campbell is not known.  Mr. Campbell may dispose 
of Class “A” shares held by him, however the number which he may dispose of, if any, is unknown. 
11.  Great Pacific is registered with the Financial Institutions Commission (FICOM) as a Mortgage Broker.    
12.  Walter R. Neufeld is licensed as the Designated Individual and Sub-Mortgage Broker and Jeffery A. Moses, 
Paul E. Croy, Christopher B. Paul and Damian A. Sowa are licensed as a Sub-Mortgage Brokers of Great Pacific. 
 
 . 
See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

3.2 Management Experience - The following table, discloses the principal occupations of the directors and 
senior officers of the Issuer over the past five years. In addition, for each individual, it describes any relevant 
experience in a business similar to the Issuer’s. 

Name  Principal occupation and related experience  

Walter R. Neufeld -Exempt Market Dealer Representative with Great Pacific Mortgage & Investments 
Ltd. 2012 to 2015; 
-Mortgage broker since 1993;  
-Director Accredit Mortgage Ltd. since 1994 
-Secretary Accredit Mortgage Ltd. 1994-2014; 
-CEO Accredit Mortgage Ltd. since 2014;  
-Director and Secretary Great Pacific Mortgage & Investments Ltd. since 1999;  
-CEO Great Pacific Mortgage & Investments Ltd. since 2013; 
-Director First Accredit Mortgage Corp. since 2001; 
-Vice President First Accredit Mortgage Corp. 2001-2011; 
-President First Accredit Mortgage Corp. 2011-2015; 
-CEO First Accredit Mortgage Corp. since 2015; 
-Director GP MIC Fund Ltd. since 2005; 
-Vice President GP MIC Fund Ltd. 2005-2014; 
-CEO GP MIC Fund Ltd. since 2014;  
-1987-1993 Branch Manager Beneficial Can. Inc/Beneficial Realty Ltd., Victoria BC;  
-1981-1983 Assistant Manager Credit Scotia Bank, Saskatoon SK;  
-1978-1980 Assistant Manager Household Finance Corp., Saskatoon SK 
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Name  Principal occupation and related experience  

Jeffery A. Moses -Exempt Market Dealer Representative with Great Pacific Mortgage & Investments   
Ltd. 2012 to 2015.   
-Mortgage broker since 1993;  
-Director and Treasurer Accredit Mortgage Ltd. since 1994;  
-Director and Treasurer Great Pacific Mortgage & Investments Ltd. since 1999;  
-Director and Treasurer First Accredit Mortgage Corp. since 2001;  
-Director and Treasurer GP MIC Fund Ltd. since 2005;  
-1988-1991 Investment Advisor McCarthy Securities, Toronto ON.;  
-1978-1988 Vice President, Investment Advisor Midland Doherty Ltd., Toronto ON. 

Paul E. Croy -Mortgage broker since 2005;  
-Director and Secretary Accredit Mortgage Ltd. since 2005;  
-Vice President Accredit Mortgage Ltd. since 2007; 
-Director First Accredit Mortgage Corp. since 2004; 
-Vice President First Accredit Mortgage Corp. since 2008; 
-Director and Vice President GP MIC Fund Ltd. since 2005; 
-Branch Manager – Pacific Region - Laurentian Bank of Canada 1995-2004. 

Damian A. Sowa -Mortgage broker since 2015 
-Director Accredit Mortgage Ltd. since 2016 
-Market Development Manager, PRT Growing Services Ltd. 2011-2014 
-Commercial Director, Innovotech Inc., 2007-2011 
-Product Manager, SciMed Technologies, 2006 
-Financial Advisor & other positions, North Shore Credit Union 1995-2000 
-Masters of Science, University of Alberta, 2003-2006 
-Bachelors of Science, University of British Columbia, 1996-2000  

Aaltje van Grootheest -Retired (2015) Barrister and Solicitor: Sole practitioner with a practise including 
substantial experience in the legal aspects of commercial mortgage lending 
-Present Director, The Christian Reformed Church of North America 
-Previous Director, The Victoria Christian Education Society 
-Previous Director, The King’s University, Edmonton, Alberta 
-Various previous directorships of small Christian organizations, including Chair of 
the Council of the Victoria Christian Reformed Church 
-Bachelor of Law, University of Alberta, 1984 

   
               
 

3.3 Penalties, Sanctions and Bankruptcy 

(a) There is no penalty or sanction that has been in effect during the last 10 years against  

(i) a director, senior officer or control person of the Issuer, or  

(ii) an Issuer of which a person or company referred to in (i) above was a director, senior 
officer or control person at the time, 

(b) There is no declaration of bankruptcy, voluntary assignment in bankruptcy, proposal under any 
bankruptcy or insolvency legislation, proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or 
appointment of a receiver, receiver manager or trustee to hold assets, that has been in effect 
during the last 10 years with regard to any  

(i) director, senior officer or control person of the Issuer, or  

(ii) Issuer of which a person or company referred to in (i) above was a director, senior officer 
or control person at that time.  

3.4 Loans -  As at the date of this Offering Memorandum, there are no debentures or loans due to or from the 
directors, management, promoters or principal holders of Class “A” shares of the Issuer.   
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Item 4:  CAPITAL STRUCTURE  

4.1 Share Capital 

Description of 
security1 

Number 
authorized to be 
issued 

Price per 
security 

Number 
outstanding as 
at March 23, 
2018 

Number 
outstanding after 
min. offering 

Number 
outstanding 
after max. 
offering 

Class “A” 
shares 

500,000,000 $0.85 31,576,321 31,743,459 41,743,459 

Class “B” 
shares 

500,000,000 $0.0153 272,000 272,000 272,000 

1. Only Class “A” shares are offered for sale under this Offering Memorandum. 

See Item 5.1 for additional information regarding the rights attributable to Class “A” shares and Class “B” shares. 

4.2 Long Term Debt - The Issuer has no outstanding long term debt.    

4.3 Prior Sales -  No Class ‘A’ shares of the Issuer have been issued since 2011.  

 

Item 5:  SECURITIES OFFERED 

5.1 Terms of Securities 

(a) Voting Rights - Each Class “A” share carries one vote.  Each Class “B” share carries 1,000 votes.  
Only Class “A” shares are offered for sale under this Offering Memorandum.  

(b) Entitlement to Dividends - The holders of all the Class “A” shares are entitled to receive pari 
passu all of the regular dividends declared by the directors on such shares.  The Issuer typically, 
subject to the plan (see p. 2.3 & 2.4) declares dividends on a quarterly basis; however, the 
directors may also declare yearend and/or special dividends.  Dividends are payable in cash or in 
shares, or partly in cash and partly in shares, at the option of the shareholder.  The directors are 
permitted to declare a dividend on one class of shares to the exclusion of another class of shares.  
As a matter of practice, the directors do not declare dividends on Class “B” shares, other than any 
yearend or special dividends which will (if declared) be divided between Class “A” shares (55%) 
and Class “B” shares (45%).  See Item 8. 

(c) Redemption rights - You may not be able to redeem shares. There are no redemption or 
retraction rights specified in the Articles of the Issuer.  However, holders of Class “A” shares are 
entitled to request the redemption of their Class “A” shares by submitting a written request to the 
Issuer.  There is no guarantee that the shares will be redeemed, however shares will be redeemed 
on a “best efforts” basis.  The Issuer will not redeem shares if as a result of the redemption: 

1. one shareholder would hold more that 25% of the issued shares of any class of the 
Issuer’s shares;  

2. the number of shareholders of all classes of shares of the Issuer would be less than 20;. 
or 

3. the Issuer would, as a result of such redemption, or for any other reason cease to qualify 
as a MIC.  See Item 8. 

There will be no charge for the first redemption of shares by a shareholder during any calendar 
year.  All subsequent redemptions by the shareholder, during the same calendar year, may be 
subject to a $50.00 administration fee. 

If you seek to redeem your Class “A” shares and the Issuer is unable to comply with such request, 
you will be so advised. 

Previous 2 year share repurchase history:  Fiscal 2016: 6,884,786 for $4,083,582.60 

       Fiscal 2017: 3,214,492 for $2,253,358.68 

During the previous 2 year period, all shares submitted for repurchasing were repurchased.  There 
are no statutory obligations of the company to redeem any shares.  All repurchases are subject to 
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approval by the Board of Directors on a “best efforts” basis and are subject to the availability of 
funds. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

5.2 Subscription Procedure 

(a) All subscribers for Class “A” shares will be required to execute and deliver to the Issuer or its agent: 

(i) a Subscription Agreement (a copy of which is provided herewith);  

(ii) a Risk Acknowledgment Form (a copy of which is provided herewith);  

(iii) payment of the purchase price in the form of a cheque payable to Accredit Mortgage Ltd. 
drawn on a recognized financial institution or by such other means as the Issuer in its sole 
discretion may accept; and 

(iv) any other information and documentation required by the Issuer or Great Pacific, including 
information and documentation required to establish each subscriber’s identify and to 
comply with federal anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist financing legislation. 

(b) The subscription funds (cheque or bank draft) delivered by a purchaser of Class “A” shares will not 
be presented for clearing until midnight on the second business day after the Issuer receives the 
subscriber’s signed Subscription Agreement and all other required documentation, including the 
information necessary for compliance with federal anti-terrorism and anti-money laundering 
legislation. 

(c) The Issuer reserves the right to accept or reject subscriptions in whole or in part at its discretion.  If 
the Issuer does not accept your subscription then it will promptly return the applicable subscription 
funds to you. 

Item 6:  INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES AND RRSP ELIGIBILITY 

6.1 Tax Consequences 

YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS TO OBTAIN ADVICE ON THE INCOME TAX 
CONSEQUENCES THAT APPLY TO YOU. Neither the Issuer nor Great Pacific Mortgage & Investments Ltd. 
(defined above as “Great Pacific”) is qualified to provide such advice. 

The following is a summary, reviewed and updated by MNP LLP, Chartered Professional Accountants, of the income 
tax consequences under the laws of Canada of acquiring, holding and disposing of the shares of a MIC.  The income 
tax consequences may not be the same for all investors but may vary depending on a number of factors, including 
whether the investor is an individual, a trust or a corporation, the province of residence of the investor, and whether 
the investors’ shares are characterised as capital property.  The following discussion of the income tax consequences 
is therefore of a general nature only, is not intended to constitute a complete analysis of all the income tax 
consequences and should not be interpreted as legal or tax advice to any particular investors(s). 

The comments in this summary are restricted to the case of an investor who acquires shares as capital property and 
who is resident in Canada for the purposes of the Income Tax Act (Canada) (the “Tax Act”).  The summary does not 
take into account tax laws of a province or territory of Canada or of any jurisdiction outside Canada. 

This summary is based upon the current provisions of the Tax Act. 

6.2 Scheme of Provisions - The Tax Act contains a number of provisions that enable investors to “pool” their 
funds through investing in special corporations that are treated in a manner that avoids the two-tiered taxation 
normally applicable to shareholders of an Issuer in respect of distributions of that company’s profits.  This result is 
achieved by effectively treating these special corporations as a conduit so that an investor is put in the same position 
from an income tax perspective as if the corporation’s investment had been made directly by the Investor. 

A MIC is one of these special types of corporations. 

6.3 Definition of a MIC - A number of requirements must have been met throughout the year in order for a 
corporation (herein referred to as the “Issuer”) to qualify as a MIC under the Tax Act for that year.  If the following 
requirements are met throughout a particular year, a corporation will qualify for MIC status that year: 

(a) Canadian Corporation - the Issuer must have been a Canadian corporation, which generally means 
a corporation incorporated and resident in Canada. 

(b) Undertaking - the Issuer’s only undertaking was the “investing of funds of the Issuer”.  The Issuer 
cannot have managed or developed any real property. 
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(c) 50% Asset Test - at least 50% of the “cost amount”, as defined in the Tax Act, to the Issuer of all of 
its property must have consisted of the Issuer’s money, debts owing to the Issuer that were 
secured on certain specified residential properties, and any deposit standing to the Issuer’s credit in 
the records of a bank or other certain specified financial institutions. 

(d) 25% Asset Test - the “cost amount” to the Issuer of all of its real property including leasehold 
interest in such property, other than real property acquired by foreclosure or otherwise after default 
made on a mortgage, hypothecation or agreement for sale of real property, must not have 
exceeded 25% of the “cost amount” to the Issuer of all of its property.  The limit is designed to 
ensure that the primary intention of the Issuer’s investment was directed towards residential 
mortgages. 

(e) Prohibited Foreign Investment - none of the property of the Issuer consists of debts owing to the 
Issuer that were secured on real or immovable property situated outside Canada, debts owing to 
the Issuer by non resident persons unless secured on real or immovable property situated in 
Canada, shares of the capital stock of Issuers not resident in Canada, real or immovable property 
situated outside Canada, or any leasehold interest in real or immovable property situated outside 
Canada. 

(f) Shareholder Requirements - the Issuer must have at least 20 shareholders, and no shareholder 
(together with Related Persons, see below) of the Issuer at any time during the year owned, directly 
or indirectly, more than 25% of the issued shares of any class of the capital stock of the Issuer.  
Special rules apply for the purposes of counting shareholders that are registered pension plans or 
deferred profit sharing plans.   

(g) Classes of Shareholders - any holders of preferred shares (as defined in the Tax Act) of the Issuer 
must have the right after payment to them of their dividends, and payment of dividends in a like 
amount per share to the holders of common shares of the Issuer, to participate pari passu with the 
holders of the common shares in any further payment of dividends. 

(h) Debt to Equity Ratio - the Issuer is restricted to borrowing a maximum of three times its equity 
capital unless at least two-thirds of the book value of its investments are mortgages secured on 
Canadian residential property, the company’s money, and specified deposits, in which case the 
maximum borrowing is five times its equity capital. 

With respect to the requirement noted above that no shareholder (together with Related Persons) may own more 
than 25% of the shares of any class of the Issuer for these purposes “Related Persons” include a corporation and the 
person or persons that control the corporation, a parent corporation and its subsidiary corporation(s) and corporations 
that are part of the same corporate group, and an individual and that individual’s spouse, common-law partner or 
child under 18 years of age.  The rules in the Tax Act defining “related persons” are complex and shareholders 
should consult their own tax advisors in this regard. 

6.4 Taxation of the Issuer - This discussion, and the discussion that follows under subsequent headings, is 
based on the assumption that the Issuer qualifies as a MIC under the Tax Act at all relevant times. 

A MIC, as a general rule, is subject to tax on the same basis as any Canadian public corporation.  However, special 
rules relating to a MIC enable it to reduce its federal taxable income in the year if, during the year or within 90 days 
after the end of the year, it distributed all of its capital gains arising in the year by way of “capital gains dividends” and 
all of its other income by way of taxable dividends.  More specifically, the Issuer is entitled to deduct from its federal 
taxable income the total of: 

(a) all taxable dividends, other than capital gains dividends, paid by the Issuer during the year (to the 
extent not deductible in computing income of the previous year) or within 90 days after the end of 
the year to the extent that those dividends will not be deductible for the Issuer in computing its 
income for the preceding year; and 

(b) one half of all capital gains dividends paid by the Issuer during the period commencing 91 days 
after the commencement of the year and ending 90 days after the end of the year. 

If all of the Issuer’s federal taxable income for the year is distributed in this manner, no federal tax is payable by the 
Issuer for that year.  The elimination of provincial tax depends on relevant provincial legislation.  For example, in 
British Columbia no corporate income tax would be payable if the Issuer’s federal taxable income was zero because 
the Issuer’s income taxes for British Columbia’s income tax purposes is calculated by reference to its taxable income 
for federal tax purposes. 

Because of the permitted deductions outlined above, the Issuer is not entitled to the deduction in respect of taxable 
dividends the Issuer receives from other taxable Canadian corporations. 
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The Issuer must elect in order to distribute its capital gains as capital gains dividends.  The election must be made in 
a prescribed manner and by a prescribed time.  The total capital gains dividends that may be paid by the Issuer for a 
year is limited to the extent of twice the Issuer’s “taxable capital gains” for the year less its allowable capital losses for 
the year and any “net allowable capital losses” of prior years that are carried forward and deducted in the year.  A 
special tax is imposed on the Issuer if the capital gains dividends exceed this limit.  However, there is a special 
election procedure, whereby this tax can be avoided in certain circumstances if the excess of the dividend is elected 
to be treated as a separate taxable dividend. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

6.5 Taxation of Shareholders 

(a) Capital Gains Dividends - a capital gains dividend received by a Canadian resident shareholder is 
not included as dividend income of the shareholder, but rather is deemed to be a capital gain of the 
shareholder for the year from “a disposition of capital property”. 

Thus, with respect to capital gains realised by the Issuer, the Issuer serves effectively as a conduit 
only interposed between the investor and the underlying investment.  The result is only achieved, 
however, if the capital gains dividends are paid by the Issuer within the required time, and the 
proper elections are made by the Issuer in prescribed form and by the proper time.  If the capital 
gains dividends are not paid in this manner, the capital gains realised by the Issuer are taxable to 
the Issuer as they would be in the case of any public company.  Because the Issuer will have no 
“capital dividend account”, the combined corporate and shareholder tax (when the amounts are 
paid out to the Investor as taxable dividends) could be significantly greater than if the conduit 
mechanism was used. 

(b) Taxable Dividends (Other than Capital Gains Dividends) - dividends other than capital gains 
dividends paid by the Issuer are not included in the income of a shareholder as taxable dividends, 
but rather are deemed to have been received by the shareholder as interest income payable on a 
bond issued by the Issuer after 1971.  Accordingly, the “gross-up/dividend tax credit” mechanism 
provided in the Tax Act does not apply to taxable dividends paid by the Issuer to Canadian resident 
individual shareholders.  Canadian resident corporate shareholders are not entitled to deduct the 
amount of a taxable dividend received from a MIC in computing taxable income. 

If the Issuer distributes all of its income, it is again effectively treated as a conduit between the 
investor and the underlying investment, at least with respect to rental and interest income earned.  
As is the case with capital gains dividends, if the Issuer does not distribute all of its income within 
the required time by way of taxable dividends, the income remains taxable in the Issuer in the same 
manner as any other public corporation.  When amounts are subsequently distributed to the 
shareholders through the payment of taxable dividends, the combined corporate and shareholder 
tax may be significantly higher than if the conduit mechanisms was used. 

(c) Disposition of Shares - assuming the shares are capital property to the investor, the usual rules in 
determining capital gains and capital losses apply on the disposition of those shares as would 
apply on similar shares of any other public corporation.  Certain taxpayers, such as securities 
dealers and those who have acquired the shares in the course of a business of buying and selling 
shares or in a transaction that is an “adventure in the nature of trade”, would not be considered to 
be holder of the shares as capital property. 

One half of any capital gain that is realised on the disposition of the shares will be included in the 
shareholder’s income.  Any amount that is deemed to be interest or a capital gains dividend on the 
redemption or other acquisition of the shares by the Issuer is not included in determining the 
proceeds of disposition of the shares for capital gains purposes. 

(d) Deferred Income Plans - the shares are qualified investments for trusts governed by Registered 
Retirement Savings Plans, Deferred Profit Sharing Plans and Registered Retirement Income Funds 
at the particular time if the Issuer qualified as a MIC under the Tax Act, and if, throughout the 
calendar year in which the particular time occurs, the Issuer does not hold as part of its property 
any indebtedness, whether by way of mortgage or otherwise of a person who is an annuitant, a 
beneficiary or an employer, as the case may be, under the governing plan trust, or of any other 
person who does not deal at arm’s length with that person. 

(e) Non-Resident Shareholders - shareholders who are considered to be non-resident of Canada are 
subject to the following rule in the Tax Act: 

Any taxable dividends paid from the Issuer to a non-resident shareholder would be subject 
to a Canadian withholding tax at a maximum rate of 25% of the taxable dividend paid.  
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This rate may be reduced if Canada has ratified a bilateral income tax treaty with the 
country in which the shareholder is resident. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

6.6 RRSP, RRIF, RESP, TFSA Eligibility - As of the date hereof, the Class “A” shares would be qualified 
investments under the Tax Act for a trust governed by a RRSP, a RRIF, a DPSP, a RDSP, a TFSA and a RESP, 
provided that either: (1) the Issuer qualifies as a MIC throughout a taxation year and further provided that at any time 
in the relevant calendar year, the Issuer does not hold any indebtedness, whether by way of mortgage or otherwise, 
of a person who is an annuitant, a beneficiary, an employer, or a subscriber under the plan, or of any other person 
who does not deal at arm's length with that person; or (2) the Class “A” shares are listed on a designated stock 
exchange for the purposes of the Tax Act.  
 
Notwithstanding that the Class “A” and Class “B” shares may be qualified investments for a trust governed by a RRIF, 
RRSP and TFSA, the holder of a RRIF, RRSP and TFSA that holds Class “A” shares or Class “B” shares will be 
subject to a penalty tax on such shares if the shares are a "prohibited investment" for that RRIF, RRSP and TFSA.         
The Class “A” or Class “B” shares will generally be a "prohibited investment" if the holder of a RRIF, RRSP and TFSA 
does not deal at arm's length with the Issuer for purposes of the Tax Act or the holder of the RRIF, RRSP and TFSA 
has a "significant interest" (within the meaning of the Tax Act) in the Issuer or a corporation, partnership or trust with 
which the Issuer does not deal at arm's length for the purposes of the Tax Act.   

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

Item 7:  COMPENSATION PAID TO SELLERS AND FINDERS  

No commissions or sales charges are payable by investors who purchase Class “A” shares through Great Pacific 
Mortgage & Investments Ltd. (defined above as “Great Pacific”).  If you purchase Class “A” shares from a dealer 
other than Great Pacific, you may elect to purchase the Class “A” shares under either of the following purchase 
options:  

(a) Sales charge option - Under the sales charge option, subject to negotiations with your dealer, you 
may be charged by the dealer a sales charge ranging from 0% to 5% of the total price you pay for 
your Class “A” shares.  The agreed sales charge is payable to your dealer at the time of your 
purchase of Class “A” shares.  There is no commission or sales charge payable by investors who 
purchase through Great Pacific. 

(b) Deferred sales charge option - Under the deferred sales charge option, the Issuer will pay to your 
dealer a sales charge of 3% of the total price you paid for your Class “A” shares.  If you redeem 
your Class “A” shares within the first year of purchase, you will pay to the Issuer a charge of 4.5% 
of the total price you paid for your Class “A” shares.  This charge declines annually by 0.5% until 
the charge is 0% at the end of the sixth year after your purchase.   

In addition, if you purchase Class “A” shares from a dealer other than Great Pacific, the Issuer may elect to pay, at its 
own expense, compensation to the dealer as follows: 

(a) If your Class “A” shares were purchased under the sales charge option, a trailing commission equal 
to 1/2 of 1% per annum on the average number of the Class “A” shares held by you. 

(b) If your Class “A” shares were purchased under the deferred sales charge option, a trailing 
commission equal to 1% per annum on the average number of the Class “A” shares held by you. 

Item 8:  RISK FACTORS 

The purchase of Class “A” shares of the Issuer involves a number of significant risk factors.  In addition to the risk 
factors described elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum, investors in Class “A” shares should consider the risk 
factors described below.  Potential investors should carefully consider these risk factors and should consult their own 
professional advisors to assess the income tax, legal and other aspects of an investment in Class “A” shares.  

(a) Investment Risk –  

(i) No Market for Class “A” shares and Resale Restrictions 

There is no public market for the Class “A” shares and it is not expected that a market will 
develop. The Class “A” shares are subject to resale restrictions under securities laws, the 
Issuer’s by-laws and the terms of the Class “A” shares.  See Item 10.  Although holders of 
Class “A” shares may request the repurchase of their shares (see Item 5.1), the 
repurchase of Class “A” shares by the Issuer will only be permitted where the issuer holds 
adequate free cash not required for other purposes and if such repurchase does not 
endanger the Issuer’s status as a MIC under the provisions of the Income Tax Act 
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(Canada). It is possible that no repurchases will be permitted for extended periods or at 
all. The sale or transfer of Class “A” shares to another shareholder is permitted, subject to 
the approval by the directors of such transfer.  The approval of directors is not required for 
transfers that occur by operation of law (for example, upon the death of a shareholder). 
Share repurchases are subject to the approval of Great Pacific. 

Consequently, this investment is unsuitable for those prospective investors who do 
or may require liquidity. Your attention is particularly drawn to the fact that if you borrow 
money to purchase these shares, you must ensure you have the resources to repay the 
loan from other assets you own or control.  The restrictions on the resale and /or 
redemption of the Class “A” shares of the Issuer are such that you may be unable to use 
them as a source of funds to repay any borrowing. 

(ii) Speculative Nature of Offering 

This is a speculative offering.  The purchase of Class “A” shares involves a number of 
significant risk factors and is suitable only for investors who are aware of the risks inherent 
in investing in MICs and in the real estate sector, and who have the ability and willingness 
to accept the risk of total loss of their invested capital.   

There is no assurance of any return on an investment in the Class “A” shares.  Moreover, 
the interest rates being charged for the mortgages in which the Issuer invests reflect the 
general level of interest rates and, as interest rates fluctuate, management of the Issuer 
expects that the aggregate yield on the Issuer’s mortgage investments will also change 
which could materially positively or negatively impact any return on investment in the 
Class “A” shares. 

(iii) Dividends 

The rate of dividend will depend on a number of factors including, but not limited to, 
mortgage interest rates, mortgagors paying on time, unexpected costs, repayment of 
sums due under a line of credit, repayment of loans (if any) and other factors not presently 
known to the Issuer. It may be necessary to suspend, delay or cease payment if this is 
determined by the directors to be in the best interests of the Issuer and its shareholders. 

Dividends may be paid, at the discretion of directors, on any class of shares to the 
exclusion of other classes and if dividends are paid on more than one class of shares the 
amount declared may differ between the classes.  Also, any dividend declared on Class 
“B” shares will reduce the amount of dividend on the Class “A” shares.  

Share Repurchases 

As noted in Capital Recovery-sec. 2.2(a) and The Plan-sec. 2.2(b) the return to 
shareholders will be through increases of the share repurchase price which is set by the 
directors. In the previous 2 years, the share repurchase price was set as follows: 

March 1, 2017      $0.72 per share                                                           
December 15, 2017           $0.80 per share                                         
April 2, 2018   $0.85 per share 

(iv) Portfolio Risk 

Other than cash held in major financial institutions or in a governmental or quasi-
governmental body, the sole assets held by the Issuer as investments will be mortgages 
on real estate located primarily or exclusively in the Province of British Columbia. The 
portfolio will not be diverse so that risk is concentrated in a single market spectrum. 

The value of this investment is dependent upon the underlying mortgages.  Risks arise 
from the inherent illiquidity of mortgages, decline in value of the underlying real estate, 
fluctuations in interest rates, concentrations in particular types of property in limited 
geographic areas, changes in economic conditions or legislation and regulatory changes 
affecting real estate ownership, usage or leverage. They can also be affected by changes 
in the financial health of the mortgagor. 

For market and other reasons, suitable mortgages may not always be available for 
investment.  In addition, there can be no assurance that the mortgages comprising the 
Issuer’s portfolio from time to time can, or will be, renewed at the same interest rates and 
terms, or in the same amounts as are currently in effect. 
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Competition from other persons or firms offering similar or other products can impair the 
market. 

Mortgages other than first mortgages may form part of the portfolio.  Whilst these typically 
carry a higher rate of return, they are subject to the rights of senior mortgagees. 

(b) Conflicts of Interest – 

Conflicts of interest exist.  The financial services agent of the Issuer, Great Pacific, also provides 
similar services to First Accredit Mortgage Corp. and GP MIC Fund Ltd.  Some officers and 
directors of the Issuer are also officers and directors of Great Pacific, First Accredit Mortgage Corp. 
and GP MIC Fund Ltd. 

As disclosed in Item 3.1, some of the directors and officers of the Issuer are also holders of both 
Class “A” and “B” shares.  See note 2 to the table above under Item 3.1 which clarifies the dividend 
payment policy as between Class “A” and Class “B” shares. 

(c) Issuer Risk – 

The Issuer is dependent on the industry experience, skill and knowledge of its senior officers and 
Great Pacific. The inability to carry out their duties or the loss of any of them could impair the 
efficiency of the Issuer. 

Changes in legislation or regulation affecting the status of the Issuer could have effects which are 
at present unforeseen and unforeseeable. 

Political risks exist from changes in public policy. These are unpredictable. 

(d) Regulatory Risk – 

Purchasers under this Offering Memorandum will not have the benefit of a review of this Offering 
Memorandum by any regulatory authorities. 

The Issuer is not subject to the ongoing disclosure and other requirements applicable to reporting 
issuers. 

(e) Tax Risk – 

If for any reason the Issuer fails to maintain its qualification as a MIC under the Income Tax Act 
(Canada), dividends paid by the Issuer on the Class “A” shares will cease to be deductible from the 
Issuer’s income and the Class “A” shares, unless listed on a prescribed stock exchange for the 
purposes of the Income Tax Act (Canada), may cease to be a qualified investment for Registered 
Retirement Savings Plans, Deferred Profit Sharing Plans, Registered Retirement Income Funds, 
Tax Free Savings Accounts, Registered Disability Savings Plans and Registered Education 
Savings Plans. The Income Tax Act (Canada) imposes penalties for the acquisition or holding of 
non-qualified or ineligible investments by Registered Retirement Savings Plans, Deferred Profit 
Sharing Plans, Registered Retirement Income Funds, Tax Free Savings Accounts, Registered 
Disability Savings Plans and Registered Education Savings Plans. See Item 6. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

Item 9:  REPORTING OBLIGATIONS 

9.1 The Issuer is not a “reporting issuer” under applicable securities laws and is not subject to the continuous 
disclosure requirements under those laws.  On an annual basis, the Issuer sends holders of Class “A” shares annual 
audited financial statements of the Issuer.  In addition, on a quarterly basis the Issuer sends holders of Class “A” 
shares a quarterly dividend report and a written commentary by or on behalf of the CEO with current information 
about relevant matters affecting the Issuer.  The directors are also available to respond directly to shareholder 
inquiries whenever received. 

9.2 The Issuer is required to file Reports of Exempt Distributions with the British Columbia Securities 
Commission, and/or other applicable securities regulators, on a regular basis, as distributions dictate.  Certain 
information about such reports is available on the Commission’s website at www.bcsc.bc.ca and on other securities 
regulator websites.  These filings may require the Issuer to disclose certain personal information about purchasers of 
Class “A” shares. 

Item 10:  RESALE RESTRICTIONS 

10.1 General: The Class “A” shares will be subject to a number of resale restrictions, including a restriction on 
trading. Until the restriction on trading expires, you will not be able to trade your Class “A” shares unless you comply 
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with an exemption from the prospectus and registration requirements under securities legislation.  As a result, you 
may never be able to sell your Class “A” shares.  However, we note that securities legislation in Canada does contain 
exemptions that will permit you to redeem your Class “A” shares in certain circumstances.  See Item 5.1. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

10.2  Restricted period applicable to trades in British Columbia:  Unless permitted under securities 
legislation, purchasers resident in British Columbia cannot trade their Class “A” shares before the date that is four 
months and a day after the date the Issuer becomes a reporting issuer in any province or territory of Canada.  Since 
the Issuer does not intend to become a reporting issuer, unless a prospectus exemption is relied upon, you may be 
required to hold your Class “A” shares for an indefinite period of time. 

See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” above. 

Item 11:  PURCHASERS’ RIGHTS 

If you purchase Class “A” shares, you will have certain rights, some of which are described below.  For information 
about your rights you should consult a lawyer.  

11.1 Two Day Cancellation Right  - You can cancel your agreement to purchase Class “A” shares. To do so, 
you must send a notice to us no later than midnight on the 2nd business day after you sign the agreement to buy the 
Class “A” shares.  

11.2 Statutory Rights of Action in the Event of a Misrepresentation - If you are resident in British Columbia, 
and received a copy of this Offering Memorandum in connection with your purchase of Class “A shares, you will have 
the statutory rights described below.   

The following are summaries of these rights. These summaries are subject to the express provisions of applicable 
securities legislation, and the rules, regulations and other instruments thereunder, and reference is made to the 
complete text of such provisions contained therein.  These provisions may contain certain limitations and statutory 
defences on which the Issuer may rely. These rights are in addition to, and without derogation from, any other right 
the investor may have at law. 

For purposes of the following summaries, “misrepresentation” means an untrue statement of a material fact or an 
omission to state a material fact that is necessary in order to make a statement not misleading in light of the 
circumstances in which it was made. 

British Columbia.  If this Offering Memorandum, together with any amendment hereto, is delivered to an investor 
resident in British Columbia and contains a misrepresentation and it was a misrepresentation at the time of purchase, 
the investor will be deemed to have relied upon the misrepresentation and will have a right of action against the 
Issuer, every director of the Issuer (if applicable) at the date of this Offering Memorandum and every person who 
signed this Offering Memorandum for damages or, alternatively, while still the owner of the Class “A” shares, for 
rescission against the Issuer, provided that: 

1. no action may be commenced to enforce a right of action:  

(a) for rescission more than 180 days after the date of the purchase; or 

(b) for damages more than the earlier of (i) 180 days after the investor first had knowledge of the facts 
giving rise to the cause of action, or (ii) three years after the date of purchase; 

2. no person or company will be liable if the person or company proves that the investor purchased the Class 
“A” shares with knowledge of the misrepresentation; 

3. no person or company (but excluding the Issuer) will be liable if the person or company proves that (i) the 
Offering Memorandum was delivered to the investor without the person’s or company’s knowledge or 
consent and that, on becoming aware of its delivery, the person or company gave written notice to the Issuer 
that it was delivered without the person’s or company’s knowledge or consent, (ii) on becoming aware of any 
misrepresentation in the Offering Memorandum, the person or company withdrew the person’s or company’s 
consent to the Offering Memorandum and gave written notice to the Issuer of the withdrawal and the reason 
for it, or (iii) with respect to any part of the Offering Memorandum purporting to be made on the authority of 
an expert or to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, an opinion or a statement of an expert, the person 
or company had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that there had been a 
misrepresentation, or the relevant part of the Offering Memorandum did not fairly represent the report, 
opinion or statement of the expert, or was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the report, opinion or 
statement of the expert; 

4. no person or company (but excluding the Issuer) will be liable with respect to any part of the Offering 
Memorandum not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert, or to be a copy of, or an extract from, 
a report, opinion or statement of an expert unless the person or company failed to conduct a reasonable 
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investigation to provide reasonable grounds for a belief that there had been no misrepresentation, or 
believed that there had been a misrepresentation; 

5. in an action for damages, the defendant will not be liable for all or any portion of the damages that the 
defendant proves does not represent the depreciation in value of the Class “A” shares as a result of the 
misrepresentation; and 

6. in no case shall the amount recoverable exceed the price at which the Class “A” shares were sold to the 
investor. 

A person or company will not be liable for a misrepresentation in forward-looking information if the person or 
company proves that: 

(a) this Offering Memorandum contains, proximate to the forward-looking information, reasonable 
cautionary language identifying the forward-looking information as such, and identifying material 
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from a conclusion, forecast or projection in 
the forward-looking information, and a statement of material factors or assumptions that were 
applied in drawing a conclusion or making a forecast or projection set out in the forward-looking 
information; and  

(b) the person or company has a reasonable basis for drawing the conclusions or making the forecasts 
and projections set out in the forward-looking information. 

 
 
 
 

Item 12:  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Attached 
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CERTIFICATE 

 

Dated: March 23, 2018 

This Offering Memorandum does not contain a misrepresentation. 

ACCREDIT MORTGAGE LTD. 

Per:_”Signed” Walter R. Neufeld________________     Per: “Signed” Jeffery A. Moses     
 Walter R. Neufeld                      Jeffery A. Moses   
 CEO               Treasurer          
 

PROMOTERS: 

 
“Signed” Walter R. Neufeld____________________________ 
Walter R. Neufeld 

“Signed” Jeffery A. Moses_____________________________ 
Jeffery A. Moses 

“Signed” Paul E. Croy________________________                   
Paul E. Croy 

“Signed” Damian A. Sowa________________________             
Damian A. Sowa  

“Signed” Aaltje van Grootheest   _______________                     
Aaltje van Grootheest  
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of Accredit Mortgage Ltd.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Accredit Mortgage Ltd., which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at September 30, 2017, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and deficit,
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Accredit Mortgage
Ltd. as at September 30, 2017 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Nanaimo, British Columbia

November 24, 2017 Chartered Professional Accountants

Suite 400 MNP Place, 345 Wallace Street, Nanaimo, British Columbia, V9R 5B6, Phone: (250) 753-8251
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Deficit

For the year ended September 30, 2017

2017 2016

Revenue
Interest - mortgages 1,016,181     399,828           
Lender fees 185,148        40,146             
Deposit interest 21,463          65,787             
Other fees 400               400                  
Performance bonus claimed -                2,000               
Net proceeds (loss) from property sales (103,615)       15,865             

1,119,577     524,026           

Expenses
Accounting and audit fees 47,532          49,301             
Directors' fees (Note 14) 39,500          30,000             
Financial services fees  (Note 14) 562,162        550,719           
GST on financial services fees  (Note 14) 28,108          27,536             
Insurance 16,713          16,611             
Interest and bank charges 3,806            14,079             
Legal fees 15,028          21,463             
Office 4,433            1,513               

717,282        711,222           

Net investment income (loss) before other items 402,295        (187,196)          

Other items
Provision for mortgage investment recovery (Note 5) 684,972        2,508,412        
Provision for loss on foreclosed property held for sale (Note 7) (7,695)           (438,573)          
Bad debt recovery 276,233        125                  

953,510        2,069,964        

Net income and comprehensive income 1,355,805     1,882,768        

Deficit, beginning of year (21,117,473)  (23,000,241)     

Deficit, end of year (19,761,668)  (21,117,473)     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended September 30, 2017

2017 2016

Net assets, beginning of year 28,705,521         30,906,336         
Increase in net assets from operations 1,355,805           1,882,768           
Repurchase of shares - Class A shares (3,038,486)          (6,507,819)          
Excess of paid up capital amount over redemption amount - Class A shares 785,128              2,424,236           

Net assets, end of year 27,807,968         28,705,521         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended September 30, 2017

2017 2016

Cash provided by (used for) the following activities
Operating activities

Fees and other receipts 364,151 512,291
Cash paid to suppliers (620,719) (737,208)
Interest received 1,691,774 2,322,823
Interest paid (3,806) (14,079)
Bad debt recovery 276,233 -

1,707,633 2,083,827

Financing activities
Repurchase of Class A common shares (2,253,358) (4,083,583)
Repayments of short-term debt - (2,465,391)

(2,253,358) (6,548,974)

Investing activities
Costs incurred on foreclosed property held for sale (410,454) (408,334)
Proceeds from disposal of foreclosed property held for sale 8,180,000 -
Funding of mortgages receivable (25,505,383) (6,808,721)
Discharge of mortgages receivable 19,857,274 15,119,031

2,121,437 7,901,976

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,575,712 3,436,829
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,019,560 582,731

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 5,595,272 4,019,560

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2017

1. Reporting entity

Accredit Mortgage Ltd. (the “Group”) was incorporated under the British Columbia Business Corporation's Act on May 26,
1994. The Group is domiciled in Canada. The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended
September 30, 2017 comprise of the Group and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”). The Group's principal
business activity is mortgage lending for residential and commercial properties. The Group is a mortgage investment
corporation and is deemed to be a public corporation under the Income Tax Act.

The address of the Group’s registered office is 101-835 View Street, Victoria, British Columbia.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorized for issue on November 24,
2017.

2. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

3. Basis of preparation

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in the historical basis except for the revaluation of certain non-
current assets and financial instruments. The significant accounting policies are set out in Note 4.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Group’s functional currency.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainties about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that would require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date are discussed
below.

Mortgages receivable and foreclosed property held for sale

The most significant estimates that management is required to make relate to the net realizable value of the mortgages
receivable and foreclosed property held for sale. These estimates may include assumptions regarding local real estate
market condition, interest rates on the availability of credit, cost and terms of financing and other factors affecting the
investments in mortgages and underlying security of the mortgages. These key management estimates are subjective and
involve inherent uncertainties and judgments.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in
comprehensive income in the periods in which they become known.  Changes to the underlying assumptions and estimates
or legislative changes in the near term could have a material impact on the provision recognized.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2017

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. 

Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis by the effective interest method, using an effective interest rate which
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts to the net carrying amount of the financial asset over the asset’s expected
life. Certain mortgages require the prepayment of interest, which is recorded as interest received in advance when received
and then recognized as interest income on an accrual basis by the effective interest method, using an effective interest rate
which exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts to the net carrying amount of the financial asset over the asset's
expected life.

Lender fees are amortized to income over the contractual terms of the mortgages.

The amount of refundable performance bonus is determined pursuant to contracts with each borrower and is received by
the Group when each mortgage is issued. The bonus is repaid to the borrower when the mortgage is repaid. In the event
that the mortgage defaults, subject to the discretion of the board of directors, the bonus is forfeited by the borrower and is
recognized as revenue by the Group. Funds held as refundable performance bonuses are non-interest bearing.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and are recorded at fair value
utilizing level 1 inputs.

Financial instruments  

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

The Group has classified cash and cash equivalents at fair value through profit or loss. 

The Group’s financial  assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at their fair value. Fair value is
approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a transaction between unrelated parties. Transactions to purchase or sell
these items are recorded on the trade date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at their fair value.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2017

4. Summary of significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Loans and receivables:

The Group has classified mortgages receivable as loans and receivables. These assets are initially recognized at their fair
value. Total interest income, calculated using the effective interest rate method, is recognized in comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at their amortized cost, using the effective interest method. Under this
method, estimated future cash receipts are exactly discounted over the asset’s expected life, or other appropriate period, to
its net carrying value. Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition less
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and less any reduction for impairment or uncollectability. Net gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in comprehensive income upon derecognition or impairment.

When a mortgage is identified as impaired, the carrying amount becomes the lower of the recorded investment and the
estimated realizable amount. Estimated realizable amounts are measured by discounting the expected future cash flows at
the effective interest rate inherent in the mortgage. When the amount and timing of such cash flows cannot be estimated
with reasonable reliability, estimated realizable amounts are based on the fair value of the security underlying the
mortgages, net of expected costs of realization.

Mortgage credit quality is assessed at a specific and collective level for reasonable assurance of timely collection of the full
amount of principal and interest. Impairment is assessed on a specific mortgage basis taking into account past experience,
credit quality, payments in arrears, general economic conditions and real estate market conditions. When a mortgage is
identified as impaired, the carrying amount becomes the lower of the recorded investment and the estimated realizable
amount.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

The Group has classified the following financial liabilities as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost: accounts
payable and accruals. These liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value. Fair value is approximated by the
instrument’s initial cost in a transaction between unrelated parties. Transactions to purchase or sell these items are
recorded on the trade date.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Under this method, estimated future cash payments are exactly discounted over the liability’s expected life, or other
appropriate period, to its net carrying value. Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial liability is measured at initial
recognition less principal repayments, and plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount. Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
are recognized in comprehensive income upon derecognition.

Financial asset impairment

The Group assesses impairment of all its financial assets, except those classified at fair value through profit or loss.
Management considers whether there has been a breach in contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments in determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists. Impairment is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying value and its fair value. Any impairment, which is not considered temporary, is
included in current year comprehensive income.

The Group reverses impairment losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost when the decrease in impairment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2017

4. Summary of significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Foreclosed property held for sale

When the Group obtains legal title of the underlying security of an impaired mortgage receivable, the carrying value of the
mortgage receivable, which comprises of principal, costs incurred, accrued interest receivable and a provision for mortgage
investment loss, if any, is reclassified from mortgages receivable to foreclosed assets held for sale. Foreclosed property
held for sale are recognized at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The Group uses management's best estimate to determine fair value of these properties, which may involve frequent
inspections, engaging realtors to assess market conditions based on previous property transactions or, retaining
professional appraisers to provide independent valuations.

Properties acquired through foreclosure are held for sale through wholly owned subsidiary companies. These properties
may require additional investment to maximize marketability and value and to facilitate orderly sale to protect shareholder
interests.

Contractual interest on the mortgage receivable is discontinued from the date of transfer from mortgage receivable to
foreclosed assets held for sale. Net income or loss generated from foreclosed property held for sale (including fair value
adjustments), if any, is recorded as provision for loss (recovery) on property held for sale. 

Mortgage Investment Corporation ("MIC") eligibility criteria

To qualify as a MIC for Canadian income tax purposes, the Group must comply with the following:
i)   At least 50% of the Group's assets must consist of residentially orientated mortgages and/or cash;
ii)  The Group's only business activity is the investing funds of the corporation and not managing or developing any real
property;
iii) The Group must not hold any investments secured by real property situated outside Canada; and
iv)  No shareholder, along with connected individuals, directly or indirectly may own more than 25% of the issued shares of 
      any class and the Group must have at least 20 shareholders.

In the opinion of management, these requirements have been met.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries. 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved where the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and it has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. In assessing control, only rights which give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities and that the
Group has the practical ability to exercise, is considered.

The Group has consolidated the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of its wholly owned subsidiaries, 0848052 B.C.
Ltd., 0893441 B.C. Ltd., and 0856522 B.C. Ltd., after the elimination of inter company transactions and balances.

On September 21, 2017, 0803710 B.C. Ltd. was dissolved. The operations up to September 21, 2017 are included in these
consolidated financial statements for the year then ended.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in these consolidated financial statements
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2017

4. Summary of significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Income taxes

The Group is a mortgage investment corporation ("MIC") for income tax purposes.  As such, the Group is able to deduct, in
computing its income for a taxation year, dividends paid to its shareholders during the year or within 90 days of the end of
the year.  The Group intends to maintain its status as a MIC. Accordingly, for financial statement reporting purposes, the tax
deductibility of the Group's distribution results in the Group being effectively exempt from taxation and no provision for
current or future income taxes is required for the Group.

Shareholders who received dividends from the Group, other than capital gains dividends, will be deemed, for income tax
purposes, to have received interest payable on a bond issued by the Group and will be subject to Canadian income or
withholding taxes accordingly.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity of the Group, except those resulting from investments by owners and
distributions to owners. Comprehensive income is the total of net income and other comprehensive income. Other
comprehensive income comprises revenues, expenses, gains and losses that, in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, require recognition, but are excluded from profit. The Group does not have any items giving rise to
other comprehensive income. All gains/losses, including those arising from measurement of all financial instruments have
been recognized in comprehensive income for the year.

Fair value measurements

The Group classifies fair value measurements recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position using a three-
tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

 Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the Group to develop its own

assumptions.

Fair value measurements are classified in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. This assessment requires judgment, considering factors specific to an asset or a liability and may
affect placement within the fair value hierarchy. 

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group has not yet applied the following new standards, interpretations and amendments to standards that have been
issued as at September 30, 2017 but are not yet effective. Unless otherwise stated, the Group does not plan to early adopt
any of these new or amended standards and interpretations.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

The final version of IFRS 9 (2014) was issued in July 2014 as a complete standard including the requirements for
classification and measurement of financial instruments, the new expected loss impairment model and the new hedge
accounting model. IFRS 9 (2014) will replace IAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement. IFRS 9 (2014) is
effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The Group has not yet determined the impact of the
standard on its consolidated financial statements. The Group expects to apply the standard for its consolidated financial
statements dated September 30, 2018.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2017

4. Summary of significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, specifies how and when entities recognize, measure, and disclose revenue. The standard
supersedes all current standards dealing with revenue recognition, including IAS 11 Construction contracts, IAS 18
Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the construction of real estate, IFRIC 18
Transfers of assets from customers, and SIC 31 Revenue – barter transactions involving advertising services. 

Amendments to IFRS 15, issued in April 2016, clarify some requirements and provide additional transition relief for when an
entity first applies IFRS 15.

IFRS 15, and the amendments, are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of this standard on its consolidated financial statements. The Group expects to apply the
standard for its consolidated financial statements dated September 30, 2019.

5. Mortgages receivable

Mortgages receivable consist of the following:
2017 2016

Mortgage principal receivable 29,043,550 23,395,441
Accrued interest receivable 113,008 697,543
Less: cumulative provision for mortgage investment loss (8,328,623) (9,006,079)

20,827,935 15,086,905

Mortgages receivable bear interest between 6.5% and 18% (2016 - 7% and 14%) and are secured by charges against real
property.  Principal and/or interest only payments are due monthly and early payment of principal is permitted. 

The cumulative provision for mortgage investment loss in the amount of $8,328,623 (2016 - $9,006,079) represents the total
amount of management's estimate of the shortfall between mortgages receivable principal and interest balances and the
estimated net realizable recovery from collateral securing the mortgage receivable.

Three mortgages were identified as requiring a provisional adjustment during the year. 

Three mortgages with a carrying value of $12,562,750  were determined to have insufficient value in their underlying
security resulting in a previously reported cumulative provision for mortgage investment loss of $9,006,079 (2016). During
the year, it was determined that a provision for mortgage investment recovery of $677,456 was required due to payments
received and an increase in underlying security resulting in a cumulative provision for mortgage investment loss of
$8,328,623. This is after the provision for mortgage investment recovery was increased by $7,516 (2016 - reduced by
$46,106) of realized gains.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2017

6. Mortgages receivable - portfolio allocation (2017)

Number of
mortgages
receivable

Amortized
cost

Net realizable
value

% of Portfolio

Mortgage rate %
0.00% (Non-performing) 8 12,562,750 4,234,129 20
5.00% to 7.00% 4 2,357,949 2,357,949 11
7.01% to 9.00% 23 11,992,568 11,992,566 58
9.01% to 13.00% 3 1,917,771 1,917,771 9
13.01% to 18.00% 3 325,520 325,520 2

41 29,156,558 20,827,935 100

7. Foreclosed property held for sale

Foreclosed property held for sale consists of two (2016 - four) foreclosed properties acquired by subsidiary companies. The
Group capitalizes all maintenance, foreclosure, pre-development costs and property taxes with the intention of recovering
the costs upon subsequent sale of the property. A property's fair value is estimated by net realizable value based upon
current listings, appraisals and other relevant market information.  The estimates of realizable value of real estate assets
are made at a specific point in time, given current relevant market information.  These estimates are subjective and involve
uncertainties and judgment.

The changes in the foreclosed assets held for sale during the year were as follows: 
2017 2016

Balance, beginning of year 9,794,378 10,082,663
Capital improvements 410,454 408,334
Fair market value adjustment, net (7,695) (438,573)
Properties sold in the year (8,283,618) (258,046)

1,913,519 9,794,378
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2017

8. Issued capital

Authorized

    Common shares
        500,000,000 Class "A" redeemable, voting shares without par value, one vote per share

        500,000,000 Class "B" voting shares without par value, 1,000 votes per share
2017 2016

Issued
    Common shares
        33,718,224 (2016 - 36,932,717) Class 'A' shares 31,872,023 34,910,509
        272,000 (2016 - 272,000) Class 'B' shares 4,160 4,160

31,876,183 34,914,669

The registered holders of the common shares are entitled to have voting rights for the election of directors or for any other
purpose.  Each class A share carries one vote.  Each class B share caries 1,000 votes. 

There are no conversion or exercise prices.

There are no repurchases or retraction rights as specified in the Articles.  Shares are repurchased on a best efforts basis as
determined by the board of directors.  The holders of all Class A shares are entitled to receive pari passu on all of the
regular dividends. When dividends are declared by the directors, dividends are payable in cash or shares.

Dividends are payable in cash or in shares, or partly in cash and partly in shares, at the discretion of the directors and the
option of the shareholder.  The directors may declare a dividend on one class of shares to the exclusion of another class of
shares.

9. Net asset value per share

2017 2016

Net assets, representing shareholders' equity
Class A 27,803,808 28,701,361
Class B 4,160 4,160

27,807,968 28,705,521

Shares outstanding
Class A 33,718,224 36,932,717
Class B 272,000 272,000

33,990,224 37,204,717

Net asset value per share (in dollars)
Class A                      0.82                      0.78
Class B                      0.02                      0.02
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2017

10. Share capital

Number 2017
Amount

Number 2016
Amount

Balance, beginning of year 37,204,717 34,914,669 44,089,504 41,422,488
Class A shares repurchased for cash (3,214,493) (2,253,358) (6,884,787) (4,083,583)
Class A shares repurchased as contributed surplus - (785,128) - (2,424,236)

33,990,224 31,876,183 37,204,717 34,914,669

During the year, 3,214,493 shares (2016 - 6,884,787) were repurchased for $2,253,358 cash (2016 - $4,083,583).

11. Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the original contribution and the repurchased amount for those
investors who redeemed their shares at the reduced value.

Effective March 1, 2017 the board of directors authorized the repurchase of shares for cancellation at $0.72 per share. Prior
to this date (from December 15, 2016 to February 28, 2017) the repurchase price was $0.67 cents per share. 

12. Return of capital

In the 2012, 2013 and 2014 fiscal years, shareholders were paid 2.42 cents, 2.31 cents and 0.74 cents per share
respectively, as a return of capital.  Shareholders who purchased shares directly from the Corporation at $1 and were held
through 2012 to 2014 were paid a total return of capital of 5.47 cents which results in an adjusted cost base for their shares
of 94.53 cents per share.

13. Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders by charging interest rates on mortgages commensurately with the level of
risk.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of a return on investment calculation to provide shareholders with a consistent rate
of return from year to year.  During the year, the Group's strategy was to advance an adequate amount of mortgages at an
acceptable risk level to provide a recovery of prior year deficits to shareholders.

In order to maintain compliance with the rules under the Income Tax Act to qualify as a mortgage investment corporation,
the Group is subject to capital requirements to maintain a minimum of 20 shareholders with no shareholder owning, directly
or indirectly, more than 25% of the issued shares of any class of the share capital of the Group.  During the year ended
September 30, 2017, the Group was in compliance with these capital requirements.

The Group manages the following as capital:

2017 2016

Share capital 31,876,183 34,914,669
Deficit (19,761,668) (21,117,473)
Contributed surplus 15,693,453 14,908,325

27,807,968 28,705,521
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2017

14. Related party transactions

Included in expenses for the current year are financial services fees of $562,162 (2016 - $550,719) paid to Great Pacific
Mortgage Investments Ltd. ("GPMI") who is related by virtue of common officers and directors. This is before GST of
$28,108 (2016 - $27,536).  GPMI is responsible for the day-to-day operations and providing all general management and
administration services to the Group. Under a financial services agreement, GPMI is entitled to a fee equal to 2% per
annum of the outstanding balance of the assets under management calculated monthly and payable monthly. During the
year, GPMI agreed to waive $nil (2016 - $26,455) of financial services fees, including GST.

Directors' fees of $39,500 (2016 - $30,000) were paid to a director of the Group. Directors of Accredit Mortgage Ltd. who are
also directors of the manager, are not paid directors fees by Accredit  These transactions were conducted in the normal
course of operations and measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed
to by the related parties.

15. Financial instruments

The Group as part of its operations carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's opinion that the Group is
not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments except as otherwise
disclosed.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss because a counter party to a financial instrument fails to discharge its contractual
obligations. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at September 30, 2017 is the carrying value of its mortgages receivable, which total
$20,827,935 (2016 - $15,086,905). The Group has recourse under these mortgages in the event of default by the borrower,
in which case the Group would have claim against the underlying property, often in conjunction with other forms of security
such as personal and corporate guarantees and general security agreements. 

A credit concentration exists relating to mortgages receivable. As at September 30, 2017, one borrower accounted for 19%
(2016 – three borrowers for 44%) over five mortgages with security of 9 individual titles. The Group believes that there is no
unusual exposure associated with the collection of these receivables other than noted in Note 5.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in the interest
rates and that at the end of a mortgage's term, it will be re priced to a prevailing interest rate lower than the original one.
Changes in market interest rates may have an effect on the cash flows associated with some financial assets and liabilities,
known as cash flow risk, and on the fair value of other financial assets or liabilities, known as price risk.  The risk is
mitigated by the fact that the Group is not exposed to market mortgage rates as there is no specific market for mortgages of
a similar type, term or credit risk.  This has allowed the Group to renew its mortgages at consistent rates.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The
Group enters into transactions to purchase goods and services on credit and manages Class A share repurchases.
Liquidity risk is measured by reviewing the Group's future net cash flows for the possibility of a negative net cash flow.

The Group manages the liquidity risk resulting from accounts payable and accruals, share repurchases and dividends
payable by investing in mortgages with short term maturities.  The Group commits to mortgages receivable only on an
assured cash availability basis.
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For the year ended September 30, 2017

15. Financial instruments  (Continued from previous page)

Other price risk 

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign currency risk), whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market. The Group enters into transactions to advance funds on mortgages where an interest rate based upon
current mortgage interest rates is charged on the advance date.

Other price risk is mitigated by the fact that the Group is not exposed to market mortgage rates as there is no specific
market for mortgages of similar type, term or credit risk.  Due to this fact, a 1% change in market mortgage interest rates
would not change the fair value of mortgages receivable. 

The Group managed its other price risk by investing in mortgages with short term maturities to minimize fluctuations in fair
value as a result of market mortgage interest rate changes.

Fair value of all financial assets and liabilities approximate carrying amounts

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accruals are approximated by their carrying value due to
their short-term nature.

International Financial Reporting Standards require the disclosure of fair value information for all financial instruments,
except in the cases where time and cost constraints make such information too difficult to reliably determine.

As there are no quoted prices in an active market for mortgages receivable, management makes its determination of fair
value based on its assessment of the current lending market of same or similar terms.  Typically, the mortgages receivable
approximate their carrying values given the mortgages receivable  consist of short term loans that are repayable at the
option of the borrower without yield maintenance or penalties.  When collection of the principal amount of a mortgage is no
longer reasonably assured, the fair value of the mortgage is reduced to the estimated net realizable value of the underlying
security.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on available relevant market information and details of the
financial instrument.  However, in cases where they may not be fully supported by observable market prices or rates,
assumptions may be subjective, and fair value cannot be estimated with precision.

16. Litigation

Application has been made to join Accredit and others to an action between South Island Aggregates Ltd (SIA) et al v. E-
Pro Enterprises Inc. (E-Pro) et al under SCBC action No. VIC-S-S-113857. This litigation is in regard to contaminated soils
being moved by E-Pro and Quantum Murray Inc. from the property formerly owned by 0848052 B.C. Ltd. (Thetis Cove) to a
site owned by SIA. Accredit has retained counsel to defend this application. 

The amount, timing and outcome of this litigation cannot be determined at this time. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of Accredit Mortgage Ltd.:  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Accredit Mortgage Ltd., which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at September 30, 2015, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss and deficit, changes
in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Accredit Mortgage
Ltd. as at September 30, 2015 and its financial performance the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Nanaimo, British Columbia

November 20, 2015 Chartered Professional Accountants

96 Wallace Street, Nanaimo, British Columbia, V9R 0E2, Phone: (250) 753-8251
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd. 
 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss and Deficit 

For the year ended September 30, 2015 
 

  2015  2014 
(restated)  

 
Revenue     

Interest - mortgages  1,102,077   1,167,974  

Net proceeds from property sales   11,593   43,336   

Lender fees   6,670   49,929   

Deposit interest   1,193   13,496   

Other income         100   200   

Performance bonus claimed             -   7,000   
 
   1,121,633   1,281,935   
 
Expenses     

Accounting and audit fees   57,199  51,354   
Advisory committee expense (Note 14) 5,665 29,183  

Appraisal expense         2,896 8,400   
Directors' fees  (Note 14)   30,000   28,000   
Financial services fees  (Note 14)   577,444   724,093   
GST on financial services fees  (Note 14)   28,872   36,205   

Insurance   20,115   20,743   

Interest and bank charges   288,883   86,930   

Legal fees   284   25,744   

Office   3,608   4,555   
 
   1,014,966   1,015,207   
 
Net investment income before other items  106,667   266,728   
 
Other items  

   

Provision for mortgage investment loss  (Note 5)   (2,292,598)   (2,401,989)   

Provision for loss on foreclosed property held for sale   (237,355)   (238,067)   
Bad debt recovery (Note 5) 15,276            -  

 

  (2,514,677)   (2,640,056)   
    
Net loss and comprehensive loss  (2,408,010)   (2,373,326)   

 

Deficit, beginning of year  
 (20,592,230)   (18,218,904)   

 

Deficit, end of year  
 (23,000,240)   (20,592,230)   

 

 



 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd. 
 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

For the year ended September 30, 2015 
 

  2015      2014 
(restated) 

 

 

 
  

Net assets, beginning of year, as previously stated 36,309,963  50,329,104 
Prior period adjustment (Note 15) (484,560) - 

   
Net assets, beginning of the year, as restated 35,825,403 50,329,104 

Decrease in net assets from operations (2,408,010)  (2,373,326)  
Repurchase of shares – Class A shares   (2,511,056)  (11,770,275)  
Return of capital - Class A shares (Note16)  -  (360,100)  

 
Net assets, end of year  30,906,337  35,825,403  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended September 30, 2015

2015 2014
(restated)

Cash provided by (used for) the following activities
Operating activities

Fees and other receipts 233,781 370,299
Cash paid to suppliers (619,464) (928,276)
Interest received 1,096,799 1,112,092
Interest paid (288,682) (86,930)

422,434 467,185

Financing activities
Proceeds from credit facility - 370,910
Repayments of credit facility - (837,593)
Repurchase of Class A common shares (2,511,056) (11,770,275)
Return of capital - (360,100)
Proceeds from loan payable - 4,000,000
Repayments of loan payable (1,534,609) -

(4,045,665) (8,597,058)

Investing activities
Funding of mortgages receivable (1,739,052) (833,548)
Discharge of mortgages receivable 5,361,509 10,086,389
Costs incurred on foreclosed assets held for sale (321,497) (270,059)

3,300,960 8,982,782

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (322,271) 852,909
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 905,002 52,093

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 582,731 905,002

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

1. Reporting entity

Accredit Mortgage Ltd. (the “Group”) was incorporated under the laws of British Columbia on May 26, 1994. The Group is
domiciled in Canada. The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended September 30, 2015
comprise of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”). The Group's principal business activity
is mortgage lending for residential and commercial properties. The Group is a mortgage investment corporation and is
deemed to be a public corporation under the Income Tax Act.

The address of the Group’s registered office is 101-835 View Street, Victoria, British Columbia. 

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorized for issue on November 20,
2015.

2. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

3. Basis of preparation

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in the historical basis except for the revaluation of certain non-
current assets and financial instruments. The principal accounting policies are set out in Note 4.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Group’s functional currency.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainties about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that would require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date are discussed
below.

Mortgages receivable and foreclosed property held for sale

The most significant estimates that management is required to make relate to the net realizable value of the mortgages
receivable and foreclosed property held for sale. These estimates may include assumptions regarding local real estate
market condition, interest rates on the availability of credit, cost and terms of financing and other factors affecting the
investments in mortgages and underlying security of the mortgages. These key management estimates are subjective and
involve inherent uncertainties and judgments.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in
comprehensive loss in the periods in which they become known.  Changes to the underlying assumptions and estimates or
legislative changes in the near term could have a material impact on the provision recognized.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

The following principle accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis by the effective interest method, using an effective interest rate which
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts to the net carrying amount of the financial asset over the asset’s expected
life.

Lender fees are amortized to income over the contractual terms of the mortgages.

The amount of refundable performance bonus is determined pursuant to contracts with each borrower and is received by
the Group when each mortgage is issued. The bonus is repaid to the borrower when the mortgage is repaid. In the event
that the mortgage defaults, the bonus is forfeited by the borrower and is recognized as revenue by the Group. Funds held
as refundable performance bonuses are non-interest bearing.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible into to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and are recorded at fair value
utilizing level 1 inputs.

Financial instruments  

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

The Group has classified cash and cash equivalents at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit (loss) are initially recognized at their fair value. Fair value is
approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a transaction between unrelated parties. Transactions to purchase or sell
these items are recorded on the trade date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit (loss) are subsequently measured at their fair value.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

4. Summary of significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Loans and receivables:

The Group has classified accounts receivable and mortgages receivable as loans and receivables. These assets are initially
recognized at their fair value. Total interest income, calculated using the effective interest rate method, is recognized in
comprehensive loss.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at their amortized cost, using the effective interest method. Under this
method, estimated future cash receipts are exactly discounted over the asset’s expected life, or other appropriate period, to
its net carrying value. Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition less
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and less any reduction for impairment or uncollectability. Net gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in comprehensive loss upon derecognition or impairment.

When a mortgage is identified as impaired, the carrying amount becomes the lower of the recorded investment and the
estimated realizable amount. Estimated realizable amounts are measured by discounting the expected future cash flows at
the effective interest rate inherent in the mortgage. When the amount and timing of such cash flows cannot be estimated
with reasonable reliability, estimated realizable amounts are based on the fair value of the security underlying the
mortgages, net of expected costs of realization.

Mortgage credit quality is assessed at a specific and collective level for reasonable assurance of timely collection of the full
amount of principal and interest. Impairment is assessed on a specific mortgage basis taking into account past experience,
credit quality, payments in arrears, general economic conditions and real estate market conditions. When a mortgage is
identified as impaired, the carrying amount becomes the lower of the recorded investment and the estimated realizable
amount.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

The Group has classified the following financial liabilities as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost: accounts
payable and accruals and loan payable. These liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value. Fair value is
approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a transaction between unrelated parties. Transactions to purchase or sell
these items are recorded on the trade date.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Under this method, estimated future cash payments are exactly discounted over the liability’s expected life, or other
appropriate period, to its net carrying value. Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial liability is measured at initial
recognition less principal repayments, and plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount. Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
are recognized in comprehensive loss upon derecognition.

Financial asset impairment

The Group assesses impairment of all its financial assets, except those classified at fair value through profit (loss).
Management considers whether there has been a breach in contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments in determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists. Impairment is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying value and its fair value. Any impairment, which is not considered temporary, is
included in current year comprehensive loss.

The Group reverses impairment losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost  when the decrease in impairment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

4. Summary of significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Foreclosed property held for sale

When the Group obtains legal title of the underlying security of an impaired mortgage receivable, the carrying value of the
mortgage receivable, which comprises of principal, costs incurred, accrued interest receivable and a provision for mortgage
investment loss, if any, is reclassified from mortgages receivable to foreclosed assets held for sale. Foreclosed property
held for sale are recognized at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The Group uses management's best estimate to determine fair value of these properties, which may involve frequent
inspections, engaging realtors to assess market conditions based on previous property transactions or, retaining
professional appraisers to provide independent valuations.

Contractual interest on the mortgage receivable is discontinued from the date of transfer from mortgage receivable to
foreclosed assets held for sale. Net income or loss generated from foreclosed property held for sale (including fair value
adjustments), if any, is recorded as provision for loss (recovery) on property held for sale. 

Mortgage Investment Corporation ("MIC") eligibility criteria

To qualify as a MIC for Canadian income tax purposes, the Group must comply with the following:
i)   At least 50% of the Group's assets must consist of residentially orientated mortgages and/or cash;
ii)  The Group's only business activity is the investing funds of the corporation and not managing or developing any real
property;
iii) The Group must not hold any investments secured by real property situated outside Canada; and
iv)  No shareholder, along with connected individuals, directly or indirectly may own more than 25% of the issued shares of 
      any class and the Group must have at least 20 shareholders.

In the opinion of management, these requirements have been met.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries. 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved where the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and it has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. In assessing control, only rights which give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities and that the
Group has the practical ability to exercise, is considered.

The Group has consolidated the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of its wholly owned subsidiaries, 0803710 B.C.
Ltd, 0848052 B.C. Ltd., 0893441 B.C. Ltd., 0856522 B.C. Ltd., and 0954983 B.C. Ltd., after the elimination of inter company
transactions and balances.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in these consolidated financial statements
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Income taxes

The Group is a mortgage investment corporation ("MIC") for income tax purposes.  As such, the Group is able to deduct, in
computing its income for a taxation year, dividends paid to its shareholders during the year or within 90 days of the end of
the year.  The Group intends to maintain its status as a MIC. Accordingly, for financial statement reporting purposes, the tax
deductibility of the Group's distribution results in the Group being effectively exempt from taxation and no provision for
current or future income taxes is required for the Group.

Shareholders who received dividends from the Group, other than capital gains dividends, will be deemed, for income tax
purposes, to have received interest payable on a bond issued by the Group and will be subject to Canadian income or
withholding taxes accordingly.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

4. Summary of significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Comprehensive income/loss

Comprehensive income (loss) includes all changes in equity of the Group, except those resulting from investments by
owners and distributions to owners. Comprehensive income (loss) is the total of profit (loss) and other comprehensive
income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) comprises revenues, expenses, gains and losses that, in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, require recognition, but are excluded from profit (loss). The Group does
not have any items giving rise to other comprehensive income (loss). All gains/losses, including those arising from
measurement of all financial instruments have been recognized in comprehensive income (loss) for the year.

Fair value measurements

The Group classifies fair value measurements recognized in the statement of financial position using a three-tier fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

 Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the Group to develop its own

assumptions.

Fair value measurements are classified in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. This assessment requires judgment, considering factors specific to an asset or a liability and may
affect placement within the fair value hierarchy. 

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group has not yet applied the following new standards, interpretations and amendments to standards that have been
issued as at September 30, 2015 but are not yet effective. Unless otherwise stated, the Group does not plan to early adopt
any of these new or amended standards and interpretations.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and subsequently amended as part of an ongoing project to replace IAS 39 Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement. The standard requires classification of financial assets into two measurement
categories based on the entity’s business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument. The categories are those measured at fair value and those measured at amortized cost.
The classification and measurement of financial liabilities is primarily unchanged from IAS 39. However, for financial
liabilities measured at fair value, changes in the fair value attributable to changes in an entity’s “own credit risk” is now
recognized in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. This new standard will also impact disclosures provided
under IFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosures. The Group does not expect this amendment to have a material impact on
its consolidated financial statements.

In November 2013, the IASB amended IFRS 9. The amendments result in significant changes to hedge accounting. In
addition, an entity can now apply the “own credit requirement” in isolation without the need to change any other accounting
for financial instruments. The mandatory effective date of January 1, 2018 has been removed to provide sufficient time for
preparers of financial statements to make the transition to the new requirements. The Group does not expect this
amendment to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

4. Summary of significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Standards adopted during the year

IAS 32 Financial instruments: presentation

The amendment to IAS 32, issued in May 2012, clarified the income tax consequences of distributions to holders of an
equity instrument and of transaction costs of an equity transaction by requiring that these items be accounted for in
accordance with IAS 12 Income taxes. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013. The amendment has not had a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosures and IAS 32 Financial instruments: presentation

Financial assets and financial liabilities may be offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position,
only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and there is either an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The amendment to IAS 32, issued in December 2011, clarified the meaning of
the offsetting criterion "currently has a legally enforceable right to set off" and the principle behind net settlement, including
identifying when some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement. The amendment will only
affect disclosure and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

The related amendment to IFRS 7, issued at the same time, requires new disclosures with respect to offsetting which
include gross amounts subject to rights of set off, amounts set off in accordance with the offsetting criteria, amounts of
financial instruments subject to master netting arrangements or similar agreements, and the related net amounts. The
amendment will only affect disclosure and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The
amendment has not had a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group applies the “portfolio exception”. Accordingly, it measures the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, with
offsetting positions in market or counterparty credit risk, consistently with how market participants would price the net risk
exposure. The amendments to IFRS 13, issued in December 2013, clarify that the portfolio exception applies to all contracts
within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial instruments or IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement,
regardless of whether they meet the definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities in IAS 32 Financial instruments:
Presentation. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The amendment has not
had a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement

The amendments to IAS 39, issued in June 2013, clarify that novation of a hedging derivative to a clearing counterparty as
a consequence of laws or regulations or the introduction of laws or regulations, does not terminate hedge accounting. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The amendment has not had a material
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

5. Mortgages receivable

Mortgages receivable consist of the following:
2015 2014

(restated)

Mortgage principal receivable 31,705,752 38,213,922
Accrued interest receivable 2,500,584 3,020,816
Less: cumulative provision for mortgage investment loss (11,560,595) (12,506,337)

22,645,741 28,728,401
Less: current portion - (15,310,575)

Non-current carrying value of mortgages receivable 22,645,741 13,417,826

Mortgages receivable bear interest between 7% and 14% (2014 - 5% and 15%) and are secured by charges against real
property.  Principal and/or interest only payments are due monthly and early payment of principal is permitted. The current
portion of mortgages receivable is defined as any mortgage with a maturity date within 12 months of the fiscal year end.

The cumulative provision for mortgage investment loss in the amount of $11,560,595 (2014 - $12,506,337) represents the
total amount of management's estimate of the shortfall between mortgages receivable principal and interest balances and
the estimated net realizable recovery from collateral securing the mortgage receivable.

Four mortgages were identified as requiring additional fair value adjustments during the year. 

Mortgages receivable with a total carrying value of $20,140,944 were determined to have insufficient value in their
underlying security resulting in a cumulative provision for mortgage investment loss of $11,560,595. These mortgages had
previously reported a provision for mortgage investment loss of $12,506,337 requiring an additional unrealized fair value
adjustment of $2,173,822 and a cumulative realized fair value adjustment of $118,776 for a total provision for mortgage
investment loss of $2,292,598. This is after the cumulative provision for mortgage investment loss was reduced by
$3,119,564 for realized gains and losses.

Bad debt recovery of $15,276 was a result of the final trustee distribution from the bankruptcy of Warren Rudd (Cedar
Corner Ltd.).

6. Mortgages receivable - portfolio allocation (2015)

Number of
mortgages
receivable

Amortized
cost

Net realizable
value

% of Portfolio

Mortgage rate %
0.00% (Non-performing) 11 20,140,944 8,751,741 39
5.00% to 9.00% 1 2,011,507 2,011,507 9
9.01% to 13.00% 4 11,830,575 11,659,183 51
13.01% to 15.00% 2 223,310 223,310 1

18 34,206,336 22,645,741 100
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

7. Foreclosed property held for sale

Foreclosed property held for sale consists of four (2014 - four) foreclosed properties acquired by subsidiary companies. The
Group capitalizes all maintenance, foreclosure, pre-development costs and property taxes with the intention of recovering
the costs upon subsequent sale of the property. A property's fair value is estimated by net realizable value based upon
current listings, appraisals and other relevant market information.  The estimates of realizable value of real estate assets
are made at a specific point in time, given current relevant market information.  These estimates are subjective and involve
uncertainties and judgment.

8. Loan payable  

2015 2014

Loan payable bearing interest at 8%, due December 31, 2015, with a specific
interest and charge over an underlying mortgage, with a carrying value of
$11,488,810, pledged as collateral. Interest of $285,391 was paid during the year
and is included in interest and bank charges. See note 9.

2,465,391 4,000,000

9. Subsequent event

On October 2, 2015, the Group received a full payout of a mortgage with a carrying value of $11,488,810 which was
pledged as collateral on the loan payable. Proceeds from this payout were first used to discharge the loan payable on that
date.

10. Issued capital

Authorized

    Common shares
        500,000,000 Class "A" redeemable, voting shares without par value, one vote per share

        500,000,000 Class "B" voting shares without par value, 1,000 vote per share

2015 2014
Issued
    Common shares
        43,817,504 Class 'A' shares 40,866,800 45,874,837
        272,000 Class 'B' shares 4,160 4,160

40,870,960 45,878,997

The registered holders of the common shares are entitled to have voting rights for the election of directors or for any other
purpose.  Each class A share carries one vote.  Each class B share caries 1,000 votes. 

There are no conversion or exercise prices.

There are no repurchases or retraction rights as specified in the Articles.  Shares are repurchased on a best efforts basis as
determined by the board of directors.  The holders of all Class A shares are entitled to receive Pari passu all of the regular
dividends, when declared by the directors, are payable in cash or shares.

Dividends are payable in cash or in shares, or partly in cash and partly in shares, at the discretion of the directors and the
option of the shareholder.  The directors may declare a dividend on one class of shares to the exclusion of another class of
shares.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

11. Net asset value per share

2015 2014
(restated)

Net assets, representing shareholders' equity
Class A 30,902,177 35,821,243
Class B 4,160 4,160

30,906,337 35,825,403

Shares outstanding
Class A 43,817,504 48,407,514
Class B 272,000 272,000

44,089,504 48,679,514

Net asset value per share (in dollars)
Class A                      0.71                      0.74
Class B                      0.02                      0.02

12. Share capital

Class A shares

Number 2015
Amount

Number 2014
Amount

Balance, beginning of year 48,407,514 45,874,837 71,948,064 68,543,848
Class A shares repurchased for cash (4,590,010) (2,511,056) (23,540,550) (11,770,275)
Class A shares repurchased as contributed surplus - (2,496,981) - (10,538,636)
Class A return of capital - - - (360,100)

43,817,504 40,866,800 48,407,514 45,874,837

During the year, 4,590,010 shares (2014 - 23,540,550) were repurchased for $2,511,056 cash (2014 - $11,770,275).

13. Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the original contribution and the repurchased amount for those
investors who redeemed their shares at the reduced value. 

Effective December 14, 2014, the board of directors authorized the repurchase of shares for cancellation at $0.55 per
share. Prior to this date (from December 21, 2013 to December 14, 2014) the repurchase price was $0.50 cents.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

14. Related party transactions

Included in expenses for the current year are financial services fees of $577,444 (2014 - $724,093) paid to Great Pacific
Mortgage Investments Ltd. ("GPMI") who is related by virtue of common officers and directors. This is before GST of
$28,872 (2014 - $36,205).  GPMI is responsible for the day-to-day operations and providing all general management and
administration services to the Group. Under a financial services agreement, GPMI is entitled to a fee equal to 2% per
annum of the outstanding balance of the assets under management calculated monthly and payable monthly. During the
year, GPMI agreed to waive $204,818 (2014 - $239,125) of financial services fees, including GST.

Directors' fees of $30,000 (2014 - 28,000) were paid to a director of the Group. Directors of Accredit who are also directors
of the manager, are not paid directors fees by Accredit  These transactions were conducted in the normal course of
operations and measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the
related parties.

The advisory committee is an independent committee which provides shareholder consultation with the board of directors.
This committee was comprised of five shareholders. Shareholders voted to dissolve the advisory committee at the
December 2014 AGM.

15. Prior period adjustment

During the year it was determined that a mortgage with a carrying value of $4,758,810 required an additional provision due
to recognition of a shortfall in security. This was due to 2008 sales of 3 commercial units to third parties that were included
as underlying security in error. Prior to 2014 this property was valued based on an appraisal evidence. Beginning in 2014
this property was valued based on BC assessed values. The error was corrected retrospectively and the impact of the
corrections is as follows:

For the year ended September 30, 2014

 - Provision for mortgage investment loss increased by $484,560
 - Net loss and comprehensive loss increased by $484,560
 - Deficit, end of year increased by $484,560

As at September 30, 2014

 - Mortgages receivable decreased by $484,560
 - Deficit increased by $484,560

16. Return of capital

In the 2012, 2013 and 2014 fiscal years, shareholders were paid 2.4 cents, 2.3 cents and 0.7 cents per share respectively,
as return of capital.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

17. Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can recover prior year deficits for shareholders by charging interest rates on mortgages commensurately with the level of
risk.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of a return on investment calculation to provide shareholders with a consistent rate
of return from year to year.  During the year, the Group's strategy, was to advance an adequate amount of mortgages at an
acceptable risk level to provide a recovery of prior year deficits to shareholders.

In order to maintain compliance with the rules under the Income Tax Act to qualify as a mortgage investment corporation,
the Group is subject to capital requirements to maintain a minimum of 20 shareholders with no shareholder owning, directly
or indirectly, more than 25% of the issued shares of any class of the share capital of the Group.  During the year ended
September 30, 2015, the Group was in compliance with these capital requirements.

The Group manages the following as capital:

2015 2014
(restated)

Share capital 40,870,960 45,878,997
Deficit (23,000,240) (20,592,230)
Contributed surplus 13,035,617 10,538,636

30,906,337 35,825,403

18. Financial instruments

The Group as part of its operations carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's opinion that the Group is
not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments except as otherwise
disclosed.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss because a counter party to a financial instrument fails to discharge its contractual
obligations. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at September 30, 2015 is the carrying value of its mortgages receivable, which total
$22,645,741 (2014 - $28,728,401). The Group has recourse under these mortgages in the event of default by the borrower,
in which case the Group would have claim against the underlying property, often in conjunction with other forms of security
such as personal and corporate guarantees and general security agreements. 

A credit concentration exists relating to mortgages receivable. As at September 30, 2015, two borrowers accounted for 85%
of mortgages receivable (2014 – three borrowers for 81%) over seven mortgages with security of 20 individual titles. The
Group believes that there is no unusual exposure associated with the collection of these receivables other than noted in
Note 5.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in the interest
rates and that at the end of a mortgage's term, it will be re priced to a prevailing interest rate lower than the original one.
Changes in market interest rates may have an effect on the cash flows associated with some financial assets and liabilities,
known as cash flow risk, and on the fair value of other financial assets or liabilities, known as price risk.  The risk is
mitigated by the fact that the Group is not exposed to market mortgage rates as there is no specific market for mortgages of
a similar type, term or credit risk.  This has allowed the Group to renew its mortgages at consistent rates.
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Accredit Mortgage Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2015

18. Financial instruments  (Continued from previous page)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The
Group enters into transactions to purchase goods and services on credit and manages Class A share repurchases.
Liquidity risk is measured by reviewing the Group's future net cash flows for the possibility of a negative net cash flow.

The Group manages the liquidity risk resulting from accounts payable and accruals, share repurchases and dividends
payable by investing in mortgages with short term maturities.  The Group commits to mortgages receivable only on an
assured cash availability basis.

Other price risk 

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign currency risk), whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market. The Group enters into transactions to advance funds on mortgages where an interest rate based upon
current mortgage interest rates is charged on the advance date.

Other price risk is mitigated by the fact that the Group is not exposed to market mortgage rates as there is no specific
market for mortgages of similar type, term or credit risk.  Due to this fact, a 1% change in market mortgage interest rates
would not change the fair value of mortgages receivable. 

The Group manages its other price risk by investing in mortgages with short term maturities to minimize fluctuations in fair
value as a result of market mortgage interest rate changes.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accruals and loan payable are
approximated by their carrying value due to their short-term nature.

International Financial Reporting Standards require the disclosure of fair value information for all financial instruments,
except in the cases where time and cost constraints make such information too difficult to reliably determine.

As there are no quoted prices in an active market for mortgages receivable, management makes its determination of fair
value based on its assessment of the current lending market of same or similar terms.  Typically, the mortgages receivable
approximate their carrying values given the mortgages receivable  consist of short term loans that are repayable at the
option of the borrower without yield maintenance or penalties.  When collection of the principal amount of a mortgage is no
longer reasonably assured, the fair value of the mortgage is reduced to the estimated net realizable value of the underlying
security.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on available relevant market information and details of the
financial instrument.  However, in cases where they may not be fully supported by observable market prices or rates,
assumptions may be subjective, and fair value cannot be estimated with precision.

19. Comparative figures

Certain prior year figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.
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Mtg 
# Security  Mortgage 

Amount 
 Prior 

Mortgage(s)  Value  L / V 
Ratio

 Amount 
advanced to 

date 

Interest 
Rate Mat Date Comm 

or Res Property Description / Comments

#DIV/0!
280 2nd charge          130,000.00         315,000.00         710,000.00 62.68%         130,000.00 11.00% 04/01/2019 R Residence in Langford.  Funds to complete renovations.

279 Inter alia 2nd charge          325,000.00      1,300,000.00      3,098,000.00 52.45%         325,000.00 8.95% 03/01/2019 R Purchase of 3 lots in Langford to build spec homes.

278 2nd charge          110,000.00         140,000.00         425,000.00 58.82%         110,000.00 14.00% 01/01/2019 R Second mortgage to assist in purchase of home in 
Duncan.  

277 Inter alia 1st / 2nd / 
2nd     12,000,000.00      1,091,150.00    17,005,000.00 76.98%      8,442,314.00 N/A 01/01/2020 R Construction financing for houses on 25 lots in Langford.

276 Inter alia 2nd charges          115,000.00         560,000.00         969,000.00 69.66%         115,000.00 8.95% 01/01/2019 C/R Assist in purchase of a vacant commercial building to be 
operated as a daycare.

275 2nd charge          104,649.00         403,000.00         847,000.00 59.93%         104,649.00 14.00% 01/01/2019 R Victoria residence.  Satisfactory payments are being 
made.  Value noted as per 2017 tax assessment.

273 2nd charge            67,000.00         345,000.00         515,000.00 79.73%           65,585.00 11.95% 04/01/2022 R To assist in debt consolidation and renovations, residence 
in Cobble Hill.

272 Inter alia 1st & 2nd 
charges          160,000.00         338,000.00      1,845,000.00 26.99%         160,000.00 9.95% 04/01/2019 C/R To assist in debt consolidation and renovations, business 

and residence in Victoria.

271 Inter alia 2nd charges            30,000.00         397,600.00         538,000.00 79.48%           30,000.00 8.99% 02/01/2019 R
Purchase of condo, Bear Mountain. Parents also signed 
and pledged their rental condo in Victoria as additional 
security.

270 2nd charge            50,000.00         350,000.00         540,000.00 74.07%           50,000.00 12.00% 11/01/2018 R Owner occupied residence in Victoria.

268 Inter alia 2nd charge          130,000.00      1,439,832.00      2,710,300.00 57.92%         130,000.00 12.00% 06/01/2019 R Inter alia over 6 properties to provide funds to cover soft 
costs for Saanich development.

267 2nd charge          120,000.00         377,343.00         760,000.00 65.44%         120,000.00 6.90% 06/01/2018 R To fund renos to residence in Sidney. Progress advances 
and fixed construction cost from contractor.

266 2nd charge          100,000.00         479,000.00         950,000.00 60.95%         100,000.00 14.00% 11/01/2018 R Strong equity position - residential property to be listed for 
sale in Spring, 2018.

265 Inter alia 1st       1,200,000.00                        -        2,750,000.00 43.64%      1,200,000.00 7.95% 09/01/2018 R 1st charge over 2 residential properties.

263 1st charge          475,779.00                        -           635,000.00 74.93%         475,779.00 7.95% 09/01/2018 R Owner occupied  residential construction - Malahat.

262 Inter alia 1st charge          375,000.00                        -           555,000.00 67.57%         375,000.00 7.95% 09/01/2018 R Inter alia over 2 residential, owner occupied, properties in 
Campbell River.

261 1st charge          250,000.00                        -           545,000.00 45.87%         250,000.00 7.95% 08/01/2018 R Bridge financing over personal residence for a post-
divorce buyout of spouse in Port Alberni.

260 1st charge          520,000.00                        -           825,000.00 63.03%         520,100.00 8.95% 08/01/2018 R Personal residence, Victoria, owner occupied, low LTV.

258 1st charge          282,031.00                        -           605,000.00 46.62%         282,031.00 7.95% 08/01/2018 R Residential property to renovate and sell.

256 Inter alia 2nd charge          387,370.00         605,000.00      1,630,000.00 60.88%         384,432.00 7.95% 08/01/2018 R Inter alia over 3 residential properties.

254 Inter alia 1st/2nd/2nd          350,000.00      1,178,516.00      2,916,500.00 52.41%         350,000.00 8.95% 07/01/2018 R
Refinancing of development property in Cowichan Bay. 
Inter alia over 3 lots, includes funds to build one owner-
occupied house.

252 2nd charge          230,000.00         305,000.00         805,000.00 66.46%         230,000.00 9.00% 06/01/2018 R Nanaimo - Good residential neighbourhood.  Funds to 
assist in purchase of business.

251 Inter alia 3 properties       1,600,000.00         620,000.00      4,004,000.00 55.44%      1,600,000.00 8.49% 05/01/2018 C Assist in purchase of commercial development property, 
Nanaimo.
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250 Inter alia 1st charge          717,836.00                        -        2,479,000.00 28.96%         717,836.00 7.95% 05/01/2018 R First charge over Victoria 10-suite revenue property and 
commercial property. Strong equity position.

248 1st charge          893,750.00                        -        1,375,000.00 65.00%         893,750.00 6.99% 10/01/2018 R Purchase of 2 residential acreages for re-development, 
Victoria.

247 1st charge          575,000.00                        -           860,000.00 66.86%         575,000.00 7.95% 10/01/2018 R Construction - spec house in Colwood.

246 1st charge          425,000.00                        -           535,000.00 79.44%         425,000.00 6.99% 04/01/2019 R Assist in purchase and renovation of a home in 
Abbotsford.

242 1st charge          625,000.00                        -           850,000.00 73.53%         448,000.00 7.95% 09/01/2018 R Residential construction -owner occupied - Mill Bay

241 Inter alia 1st and 2nd 
charge          225,000.00         541,000.00      1,000,000.00 76.60%         225,191.00 8.49% 02/01/2019 R Mobile home and residence, Bowser, BC

239 2nd charge          100,000.00         607,750.00      1,025,000.00 69.05%         100,000.00 18.00% 01/01/2019 R Residential property, Shawnigan Lake.  

238 Inter alia 2nd charge          422,800.00         795,000.00      1,553,500.00 78.39%         425,617.00 8.95% 07/01/2018 R Inter alia over 2 residential properties in Victoria

235 Inter alia 1st & 2nd 
charge          740,000.00         385,000.00      1,554,000.00 72.39%         740,000.00 7.75% 09/01/2018 R Inter alia charge over 2 residential properties in Tofino.

227 Inter alia 1st & 2nd       3,540,000.00         968,218.00      5,908,000.00 76.31%      1,930,918.00 9.95% 08/01/2018 R Development property - Langford. Funds for construction 
of 7 houses and 4 townhouse lots.

226 1st mortgage          404,379.00                        -           595,000.00 67.96%         404,379.00 6.95% 08/01/2018 R First charge for purchase of home in Florence Lake area. 

218 1st mortgage                         -                          -                          -                          -   C

Multi-unit waterfront residential / commercial property in 
Ucluelet.  30 strata units in total.  Foreclosure: All 
residential and commercial units (of value) have been 
sold. Phase 2 (land only) is being actively marketed.  
Value is set at zero.

195 2nd  mortgage            63,885.00           65,645.00         190,000.00 68.17%           63,885.00 12.00% 11/01/2018 R Recreational property on Shawnigan Lake.
8  

158  
189 

1st, 2nd & 3rd 
mortgages          826,845.00  To be 

determined         826,845.00 N/A N/A R Accredit has charges over 3 individual properties by way 
of 3 separate mortgages, plus collateral security. 

    28,671,324.00    13,607,054.00    64,107,300.00    23,326,311.00 

#52         998,862.00 Book Value

#36         914,657.00 Book Value

#95         116,000.00 Book Value

     2,029,519.00 

     2,985,186.00 

28,341,016.00   

*  TOTAL NUMBER OF ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING CLASS 'A' SHARES AS OF MARCH 23, 2018:    31,576,321

TOTAL

FORECLOSED PROPERTIES (SUBSIDIARIES) HELD FOR RESALE

Wholly owned through a subsidiary company Listed at $1,600,000.00 - MLS #427534

Wholly owned through a subsidiary company

 SUBTOTAL - SUBSIDIARIES 

CASH ON HAND AS AT March 23, 2018

Wholly owned through a subsidiary company The Board is pursuing a re-zoning of this property. 
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** To view the MLS listings please visit; www.realtor.ca and input the MLS #
*** Great Pacific Mortgage & Investments Ltd. confirms that Accredit Mortgage Ltd. conforms to the requirment to remain as a Mortgage Investment Corporation



SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is dated the            day of                                                             , 20          
 
BETWEEN: ACCREDIT MORTGAGE LTD., 101 – 835 View Street, Victoria, B.C., V8W 3W8 
   (hereinafter called the "Company")        OF THE FIRST PART 
 
 
AND:   _________________________________________________________________________ 
  
   _________________________________________________________________________ 
   please print name(s) and address(es) as you wish them to appear on the Share Certificate 
   (hereinafter called the "Buyer")                  OF THE SECOND PART 
 
 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
A. The Company is incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia and carries on business as a mortgage 

investment corporation [as such term is defined in the Income Tax Act (Canada) (the "Tax Act")]. 
 
B. The Buyer wishes to subscribe for certain Class “A” Voting Shares, without par value, in the capital of the Company (the "Class 

“A” Shares") and the Company has agreed to accept such Subscribed on the terms and conditions herein. 
 
 
THEREFORE: 
 
1. The Buyer hereby subscribes for                                       Class “A” Shares (the “Subscribed Shares”) at an issue price of $0.85 

each and tenders herewith payment of  $                                                  (the “Subscription Price”) made payable to the Company. 
 
2. The Buyer acknowledges that, because the Buyer has 2 business days to cancel this agreement, the issuer will hold the 

Subscription Price until such period has expired.  The Company will then issue a Share Certificate for the Subscribed Shares 
forthwith upon deposit of the Subscription Price into its bank account and will make same available to the Buyer as soon as the 
instrument representing the Subscription Price has cleared the financial institution upon which it is drawn. 

 
3. The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company that the Buyer is purchasing the securities hereunder: 
 (i)  as principal for his or her own account and not for the benefit of any other person OR 
 (ii)  as Trustee for: _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 (please cross out inappropriate section) 
 
4. If the Buyer is an individual, he or she has attained the age of majority and has the legal capacity and competence to execute this 

Agreement, and to take all actions required pursuant hereto. 
 
5. If the Buyer is a corporation: 
 (a) it has the legal capacity and competence to execute this Agreement, and to take all actions required pursuant hereto; 
 (b) all necessary approvals have been given to authorize it to execute this Agreement, and to take all actions required pursuant 

hereto; and 
 (c) the entering into of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby will not result in the violation of any of the terms 

and provisions of any law applicable to, or the constating documents of, the Buyer or of any agreement, written or oral, to 
which the Buyer may be a party or by which it is bound. 

 
6. The Buyer acknowledges that because this Subscription is being made pursuant to exemptions from the registration and 

prospectus requirement of applicable securities laws: 
 (a) the Buyer is restricted from using certain civil remedies available under applicable securities laws; 
 (b) the Buyer will not receive a prospectus that might otherwise be required to be provided to the Buyer under the applicable 

securities laws if the exemptions were not being used;  
 (c)  the offering of the securities need not be carried out through an investment advisor; and 
 (d) the Company is relieved from certain obligations that would otherwise apply under applicable securities laws if the exemptions 

were not being used. 
 
7. The Buyer acknowledges that the securities being purchased hereunder will be subject to resale or transfer restrictions which will 

prevent the Buyer from reselling the securities except in very limited circumstances.  The Buyer acknowledges that he may never 
be able to sell these securities. 

 
8. The Buyer acknowledges that the Company is under no obligation to qualify the resale of the securities under a prospectus or 

assist the Buyer in complying with the resale or transfer restrictions of applicable securities laws. The Buyer further acknowledges 
that it is the Buyer’s obligation to comply with the resale or transfer restrictions in all applicable jurisdictions and the Company 
offers no advice on those restrictions. 

 
 
9. The Buyer acknowledges that no securities commission has evaluated or endorsed the merits of the Subscribed Shares and that 

the person selling the Subscribed Shares has no duty to tell the Buyer whether the Subscribed Shares are a suitable investment.  
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THE BUYER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (S)HE IS INVESTING IN THE COMPANY ENTIRELY AT HIS OR HER OWN 
RISK AND (S)HE MAY LOSE ALL OF HIS OR HER INVESTMENT. 

 
10. The Company acknowledges that the Buyer may request that some of the Subscribed Shares be registered in the name of a 

deferred income plan for the benefit of the Buyer and that initially the Subscribed Shares shall be registered as set forth on the 
first page hereof.  The Buyer covenants and agrees with the Company that, notwithstanding any such designation with respect to 
registration, the Buyer shall obtain all proxies, consents and other instructions as the Company may require from time to time so 
that for all purposes of the Company's communications to shareholders, the Company need only direct such communications to 
the Buyer. 

 
11. The Company acknowledges that the Buyer may purchase the Subscribed Shares from a dealer and the Buyer may negotiate the 

sales commission with his or her dealer. 
 
12. If the Buyer purchases the Subscribed Shares from a dealer, the Buyer will elect to pay sales charges under either of the following 

options: 
 (a) Depending upon negotiations with his or her dealer, the Buyer may be charged by the dealer a sales commission ranging from 

0% to 5% of the total price the Buyer pays for his or her Subscribed Shares.  The Buyer will, at the time of purchase, pay his 
or her dealer the amount of sales commission agreed upon with his or her dealer (the "Sales Charge Option"), or 

 (b) The Company will pay to the dealer of the Buyer a sales commission of 3% of the total price paid by the Buyer for his or her 
Subscribed Shares.  If the Buyer redeems his or her Subscribed Shares within the first year of purchase, the Buyer will pay to 
the Company a charge of 4.5% of the total price paid by the Buyer for his or her Subscribed Shares.  This charge declines 
annually by 0.5% until the charge is 0% at the end of year six.  (the "Deferred Sales Charge Option") 

 
13. If the Buyer purchases the Subscribed Shares from a dealer, the Company may elect to pay compensation to the dealer as 

follows: 
 (a) The Company may pay to a dealer, on a quarterly basis, a trailing commission of 1/2 of 1% per annum of average 

shareholdings of the Subscribed Shares acquired by the Buyer under the Sales Charge Option. 
 (b)  The Company may pay to a dealer, on a quarterly basis, a trailing commission of 1% per annum on average of  

shareholdings of the Subscribed Shares acquired by the Buyer under the Deferred Sales Charge Option. 
 
14. The principal objective of the Company is to generate income from mortgage investments and through income tax exemptions 

which result from earning of income as a mortgage investment corporation, which income is not taxable until it is distributed to the 
purchaser. 

 
15. Dividends in respect of all net income of the Company shall, after providing for such reserves as may be necessary in the 

discretion of the directors, be declared at such times as the directors see fit to the holders of Class “A” Shares on record as at the 
date of the dividend declaration.  Such dividends may be payable in cash or in additional Class “A” Shares, or part in cash and 
part in additional Class “A” Shares, at the option of the shareholder(s). 

 
16. If any additional Class “A” Shares are issued to the Buyer by way of dividend which would result in a fractional share being issued 

to the Buyer, such fractional share shall not be issued, but an equivalent amount of cash shall be paid to the Buyer or held in his 
or her account, at the sole discretion of the Company 

 
17. The Buyer does irrevocably appoint the CEO of the Company, or failing him the Secretary of the Company, in office from time to 

time as the Buyer's attorney in fact and do hereby authorise him as such to make and sign on the Buyer's behalf and to deliver 
any and all waivers of the Buyer's right to receive a pro rata offer with respect to any future allotment of shares in the capital of the 
Company which such attorney in his discretion sees fit to give under the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), amended 
from time to time, the Articles of the Company, or otherwise. 

 
18. All notices, demands and payments required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and may be delivered 

personally, sent by facsimile or email, or may be forwarded by first class prepaid registered mail to the addresses set forth below.  
Any notice mailed as aforesaid shall be deemed to have been given and received on the earlier of actual delivery or on the 
expiration of 48 hours after it is posted and addressed as follows: 

   if to the Company, at the address set forth on Page 1, 
   if to the Buyer, at the address set forth on Page 1, 
 or at such other address or addresses as may from time to time be notified in writing by the parties hereto provided that there shall 

be between the time of mailing and the actual receipt of the notice due to a mail strike, slowdown or other labour dispute which 
might affect the delivery of such notice by the mails, then such notice shall only be effective if actually delivered. 

 
19. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of British Columbia and Canada, 

which shall be deemed to be the proper law hereof. 
 
20. This Agreement shall not be assignable by either part without the prior written consent of the other and any attempt to assign the 

rights, duties or obligations hereunder without such consent shall be of no effect. 
 
21. This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and there respective heirs, successors and 

assigns, as applicable. 
 
22. Each of the parties hereto hereby covenants and agrees to execute such further and other documents and instruments and to do 

such further and other things as may be necessary to implement and carry out the intent of this Agreement. 
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23. Should any part of this Agreement be declared or held invalid for any reason, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the 

remainder which shall continue in force and effect and be construed as if this Agreement had been executed without the valid 
portion and it is hereby declared the intention of the parties hereto that this Agreement would have been executed without 
reference to any portion which may, for any reason, be hereafter declared or held invalid. 

 
24. All references to any part to this Agreement shall be read with such changes in number and gender as the context hereof or 

reference to the parties hereto may require. 
 
25. If the Subscription Price is less than $150,000.00, the Buyer represents to the Company that the Buyer is (tick one or more of the 

following boxes):    
      √      

(a) a Director, Executive Officer* or Control Person* of the Company, or of an Affiliate of the 
Company: 

 

 
 

(b) a Spouse, parent, grandparent, brother, sister or child of a Director, Executive Officer*  
or Control Person* of the Company, or of an Affiliate of the Company,  being 
__________ ___________________________: 

 

 
 
 

(c) a parent, grandparent, brother, sister or child of the Spouse of a Director, Executive 
Officer* or Control Person* of the Company, or an Affiliate of the Company, being 
____________________________________: 

 

 
 
 

(d) a Close Personal Friend of a Director, Executive Officer* or Control Person* of the 
Company, or of an Affiliate of the Company, being ______________________________ 
(complete (1) below): 

 

 

(e) a Close Business Associate* of a Director, Executive Officer* or Control Person* of the 
Company, or of an Affiliate of the Company, being ______________________________ 
(complete (1) below): 

 

 
 
 

(f)     a Founder* of the Company or a Spouse, parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child, 
Close Personal Friend or Close Business Associate of a Founder* of the Company 
(complete (2) below): 

  

 

(g)     a parent, grandparent, brother, sister or child of a Spouse of a Founder* of the 
Company (complete (2) below): 

 

 

(h)      a person of which a majority of the voting securities are beneficially owned by, or a 
majority of the Directors are, persons described in paragraphs (a) to (g) (complete (3) 
below): 

 

 

(i)      a trust or estate of which all of the beneficiaries or a majority of the trustees pr 
executors are persons described in paragraphs (a) to (g) (complete (3) below): 

 

 

(j) a current holder of designated securities* of the Company: 
 

 

(k) an Accredited Investor* (complete (4) below): 
 

 

(l) a person or company that is not the public (i.e. the Buyer does not fit any of the 
descriptions in 25(a) to (k) and is buying the Subscription Shares on the basis of an 
Offering Memorandum) (complete (5) below): 

 

 

*See the definitions below.  
 
 (1) If you are a Close Personal Friend or Close Business Associate of a Director, Executive Officer or Control Person of the 

Company, or Affiliate of the Company, please indicate how long you have known the individual and describe the nature of your 
relationship, including how you are in a position to assess the capabilities and trustworthiness of the individual: 

 __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 (2) If you are a Founder of the Company, or a Spouse, parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child, Close Personal Friend or Close 

Business Associate of a Founder of the Company, or if you are a parent, grandparent, brother, sister or child of a Spouse of a 
Founder of a Founder of the Company, please indicate how long you have known the individual and describe the nature of your 
relationship, including how you are in a position to assess the capabilities and trustworthiness of the individual: 

 __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
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 (3) If you are a person of which a majority of the voting securities are beneficially owned by, or a majority of the Directors are, 

persons described in paragraphs (a) to (g) above, or if you are a trust or estate of which all of the beneficiaries of a majority of the 
trustees or executors are persons described in paragraphs (a) to (g) above, please indicate how long you have known the 
individual and describe the nature of your relationship, including how you are in a position to assess the capabilities and 
trustworthiness of the individual: 

 __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 (4)  If you are an Accredited Investor, have you been recognized or designated as an Accredited Investor or an exempt 

purchaser? _____________________    If so, by which securities regulatory authority? ______________________________ 
 If not, please indicate the applicable paragraph and describe how you qualify based on the definition below. 
 

Paragraph  
Description of Qualifications  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 (5)  If you are a person or company that is not the public, please indicate:  
 Have you have received the Company's Offering Memorandum dated _____________, 20          : Yes:______  No: ________  
 Have you have completed and returned to the Company a Risk Acknowledgement form:   Yes:______  No: ________ 
  
  
 
26. The Buyer acknowledges that the Company, in issuing the Subscribed Shares, is relying on his representations as 
contained in paragraph 25 hereof. 
 
27. The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that Accredit Mortgage Ltd. is required to file Reports of Exempt Distributions with the 
appropriate securities regulatory authority of each of its distributions.  The following information must be provided: Name, address, 
phone number, number of shares issued, date of share issuance, of which only the following information: number of shares issued, date 
of share issuance, is made public. 
 
28.   A holder of shares in the Issuer, Accredit Mortgage Ltd., is not entitled to borrow money from the Issuer or covenant the 
payment of money borrowed from the Issuer.  Accordingly, the purchaser hereby represents and warrants to the Issuer that 
(s)he is not currently a borrower of money from, or covenantor for the payment of money borrowed from, Accredit Mortgage 
Ltd. and (s)he will not, as long as (s)he is a holder of shared in Accredit Mortgage Ltd., become such a borrower or 
covenantor. 
 
The parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written. 
 
 
      ACCREDIT MORTGAGE LTD. 
      by its authorized signatory(ies) 
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SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED by the )  
BUYER(S) in the presence of:  ) 

) _____                                                        
      ) Signature of Buyer 
                                                                 )  
Signature of Witness   ) Telephone number: ___________________________________ 
      )        
      ) Social Insurance Number:_______________________________ 
Witness – please print:   )  
      ) Birthdate:____________________________________________ 
______________________________________ ) 
Name     ) Email address:________________________________________  
                                                                           )  
Address      )  
                                                                           ) ____________________________________________________ 
      ) Signature of Buyer 
_____________________________________  ) 
Occupation    ) Telephone Number:____________________________________ 

)  
As to all signatures   ) Social Insurance Number:_______________________________ 
 
       Birthdate: ____________________________________________ 
 
       Email address:________________________________________ 
 
 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
“Accredited Investor” means 

(a) a Canadian financial institution, or a Schedule III bank, 
(b) the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the Business Development Bank of Canada Act 
(Canada), 
(c) a subsidiary of any person referred to in paragraphs (a) or (b), if the person owns all of the voting securities of the 
subsidiary, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by Directors of that subsidiary, 
(d) a person registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as an adviser or dealer, other than a 
person registered solely as a limited market dealer under one or both of the Securities Act (Ontario) or the Securities Act 
(Newfoundland and Labrador), 
(e) an individual registered or formerly registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as a 
representative of a person referred to in paragraph (d), 
(f) the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada, or any crown corporation, agency or wholly owned entity of 
the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada, 
(g) a municipality, public board or commission in Canada and a metropolitan community, school board, the Comité de 
gestion de la taxe scolaire de l’Îe de Montréal or an intermunicipal management board in Quebec; 
(h) any national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal government of or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any 
agency of that government, 
(i) a pension fund that is regulated by either the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions (Canada) or a 
pension commission or similar regulatory authority of a jurisdiction of Canada, 
(j) an individual who, either alone or with a Spouse, beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, Financial Assets having an 
aggregate realizable value that before taxes, but net of any Related Liabilities, exceeds $1000 000, 
(k) an individual whose net income before taxes exceeded $200 000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years or 
whose net income before taxes combined with that of a Spouse exceeded $300 000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar 
years and who, in either case, reasonably expects to exceed that net income level in the current calendar year, 
(l) an individual who, either alone or with a Spouse, has net assets of at least $5 000 000, 
(m) a person, other than an individual or investment fund, that has net assets of at least $5 000 000 as shown on its 
most recently prepared financial statements, 
(n) an investment fund that distributes or has distributed its securities only to 

(i) a person that is or was an Accredited Investor at the time of the distribution, 
(ii) a person that acquires or acquired securities in the circumstances referred to in sections 2.10 [Minimum 
amount investment], and 2.19 [Additional investment in investment funds], or 
(iii) a person described in paragraph (i) or (ii) that acquires or acquired securities under section 2.18 
[Investment fund reinvestment], 

(o) an investment fund that distributes or has distributed securities under a prospectus in a jurisdiction of Canada for 
which the regulator or, in Quebec, the securities regulatory authority, has issued a receipt, 
(p) a trust company or trust corporation registered or authorized to carry on business under the Trust and Loan 
Companies Act (Canada) or under comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, acting on behalf 
of a fully managed account managed by the trust company or trust corporation, as the case may be, 
(q) a person acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by that person, if that person 

(i) is registered or authorized to carry on business as an adviser or the equivalent under the securities 
legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, and 
(ii) in Ontario, is purchasing a security that is not a security of an investment fund; 
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(r) a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) that, in regard to the trade, has obtained advice from an 
eligibility adviser or an adviser registered under the securities legislation of the jurisdiction of the registered charity to give 
advice on the securities being traded, 
(s) an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction that is analogous to any of the entities referred to in paragraphs (a) to (d) 
or paragraph (i) in form and function, 
(t) a person in respect of which all of the owners of interests, direct, indirect or beneficial, except the voting securities 
required by law to be owned by Directors, are persons that are Accredited Investors, 
(u) an investment fund that is advised by a person registered as an adviser or a person that is exempt from registration 
as an adviser, or 

“Affiliate”:  an issuer is an Affiliate of another issuer if 
(a) one of them is the subsidiary of the other, or 
(b) each of them is controlled by the same person. 

“Director” means 
(a) a member of the board of directors of a company or an individual who performs similar functions for a company, and 
(b) with respect to a person that is not a company, an individual who performs functions similar to those of a director of 
a company. 

“Eligibility Advisor” means 
(a) a person that is registered as an investment dealer or in an equivalent category of registration under the securities 
legislation of the jurisdiction of a purchaser and authorized to give advice with respect to the type of security being distributed, 
and 
(b) in Saskatchewan or Manitoba, also means a lawyer who is a practicing member in good standing with a law society 
of a jurisdiction of Canada or a public accountant who is a member in good standing of an institute or association of chartered 
accountants, certified general accountants or certified management accountants in a jurisdiction of Canada provided that the 
lawyer or public accountant must not  

(i) have a professional, business or personal relationship with the issuer, or any of its directors, executive 
officers, founders, or control persons, and 
(ii) have acted for or been retained personally or otherwise as an employee, executive officer, director, 
associate or partner of a person that has acted for or been retained by the issuer or any of its directors, executive 
officers, founders or control persons within the previous 12 months. 

“Financial Assets” means 
(a) cash, 
(b) securities, or 
(c) a contract of insurance, a deposit or an evidence of a deposit that is not a security for the purposes of securities 
legislation; 

“Founder”, in respect of the Company, means a person or company who 
(a) acting alone or in conjunction with one or more other persons or companies, directly or indirectly, takes the initiative 
in founding, organizing or substantially reorganizing the business of the Company; and 
(b) at the time of the proposed trade, continues to be actively involved in the business of the Company.  

“Related Liabilities” means 
(a) liabilities incurred or assumed for the purpose of financing the acquisition or ownership of financial assets, or 
(b) liabilities that are secured by financial assets; 

“Spouse” means, an individual who, 
(a) is married to another individual and is not living separate and apart within the meaning of the Divorce Act (Canada), 
from the other individual, 
(b) is living with another individual in a marriage-like relationship, including a marriage-like relationship between 
individuals of the same gender, or 
(c) in Alberta, is an individual referred to in paragraph (a) or (b), or is an adult interdependent partner within the meaning 
of the Adult Interdependent Relationships Act (Alberta); 

 
 

GUIDELINES 
 
In order to qualify as a “Close Business Associate”, one must have had sufficient prior business dealings with the Director, Executive 
Officer, Founder or Control Person to be in a position to assess the capabilities and trustworthiness of the Director, Executive Officer, 
Founder or Control Person. A casual business associate or a person introduced or solicited for the purpose of purchasing securities is 
not a Close Business Associate.  An individual is not a Close Business Associate solely because the individual is a client, customer, or 
former client or customer. For example, an individual is not a Close Business Associate of a registrant or former registrant solely 
because the individual is a client or former client of that registrant or former registrant.  The relationship between the Buyer and the 
Director, Executive Officer, Founder or Control Person must be direct. For example, the exemption is not available for a Close Business 
Associate of a Close Business Associate of a Director, Executive Officer, Founder or Control Person.  
 
In order to qualify as a “Close Personal Friend”, one must have known the Director, Executive Officer, Founder or Control Person well 
enough and for a sufficient period of time to be in a position to assess the capabilities and trustworthiness of the Director, Executive 
Officer, Founder or Control Person. The term Close Personal Friend can include family members not already listed in the exemption if 
the family member is in a position to assess the capabilities and trustworthiness of the Director, Executive Officer, Founder or Control 
Person.  An individual is not a Close Personal Friend solely because the individual is a relative or a member of the same organization, 
association or religious group. An individual is not a Close Personal Friend solely because the individual is a client, customer, or former 
client or customer. For example, an individual is not a Close Personal Friend of a registrant or former registrant simply because the 
individual is a client or former client of that registrant or former registrant.  The relationship between the Buyer and the Director, 
Executive Officer, Founder or Control Person must be direct. For example, the exemption is not available for a Close Personal Friend of 
a Close Personal Friend of the Director, Executive Officer, Founder or Control Person. 



 

 
 
 

Form 45-106F4 
Risk Acknowledgement 

· I acknowledge that this is a risky investment. 
· I am investing entirely at my own risk. 
· No securities regulatory authority or regulator has evaluated or endorsed the merits of 

these securities or the disclosure in the offering memorandum. 
· I will not be able to sell these securities except in very limited circumstances.  I may 

never be able to sell these securities.  
· I could lose all the money I invest. 
· The person selling me these securities is not registered with a securities regulatory 

authority and is prohibited from telling me that this investment is suitable for me. 
· The person selling me these securities does not act for me. 
 
I am investing $____________ [total consideration] in total; this includes any amount I 
am obliged to pay in future. Accredit Mortgage Ltd. will pay $_____________ [amount of 
fee or commission] of this to __________________ [name of person selling the securities] 
as a fee or commission. 
Warning: A holder of shares in the Issuer, Accredit Mortgage Ltd., is not entitled to borrow 
money from the Issuer or covenant the payment of money borrowed from the Issuer.  Accordingly, the 
purchaser hereby represents and warrants to the Issuer that (s)he is not currently a borrower of money from, 
or a covenantor for the payment of money borrowed from, Accredit Mortgage Ltd. and (s)he will not, as long 
as (s)he is a holder of shares in Accredit Mortgage Ltd., become such a borrower or covenantor. 
 
I acknowledge that this is a risky investment and that I could lose all the money I 
invest. 
 
    
Date  Signature of Purchaser 
 
    
  Print name of Purchaser 
Sign 2 copies of this document.  Keep one copy for your records. 
 
 
 

W
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You have 2 business days to cancel your purchase  
To do so, send a notice to Accredit Mortgage Ltd. stating that you want to cancel your purchase.  You must send the 
notice before midnight on the 2nd business day after you sign the agreement to purchase the securities.  You can send 
the notice by fax or email or deliver it in person to Accredit Mortgage Ltd. at its business address.  Keep a copy of 
the notice for your records. 
 
Issuer Name and Address:  

Accredit Mortgage Ltd., 101 – 835 View St., Victoria BC   V8W 3W8 
Phone: (250) 361-4775   Fax: (250) 381-1914                          
E-mail: info@greatpacificmortgage.com 

 
You are buying Exempt Market Securities 
They are called exempt market securities because two parts of securities law do not apply to them. If an issuer wants 
to sell exempt market securities to you: 
· the issuer does not have to give you a prospectus (a document that describes the investment in detail and 

gives you some legal protections), and 
· the securities do not have to be sold by an investment dealer registered with a securities regulatory 

authority or regulator. 
 
There are restrictions on your ability to resell exempt market securities.  Exempt market securities are more risky 
than other securities. 
 
You will receive an offering memorandum Read the offering memorandum carefully because it has important 
information about the issuer and its securities. Keep the offering memorandum because you have rights based on it. 
Talk to a lawyer for details about these rights. 
 
The securities you are buying are not listed The securities you are buying are not listed on any stock exchange, 
and they may never be listed. You may never be able to sell these securities. 
 
The issuer of your securities is a non-reporting issuer  
A non-reporting issuer does not have to publish financial information or notify the public of changes in its business. 
You may not receive ongoing information about this issuer. 
 
For more information on the exempt market, call your local securities regulatory authority or regulator.    
   British Columbia Securities Commission 
   Suite 200 – 865 Hornby Street, 
   Vancouver BC  V6Z 2H4 
   Phone: (604) 899-6506 or 1-800-373-6393 
   www.bcsc.bc.ca 
[Instruction:  The purchaser must sign 2 copies of this form.  The purchaser and the issuer must each receive a 
signed copy.] 

http://www.bcsc.bc.ca/


Appendix A to BCI 32-517 
 

Risk Acknowledgement under BCI 32-517 Exemption from dealer registration requirement 
for trades in securities of mortgage investment entities 

 
Name of Issuer:  Accredit Mortgage Ltd. 
 
Name of Seller’s Agent: Great Pacific Mortgage & Investments Ltd. 
 
I acknowledge that 
 

• the person selling me these securities is not registered with a securities regulatory 
authority and is prohibited from telling me that this investment is suitable for me; 

• the person selling me these securities does not act for me; 
• this is a risky investment and I could lose all of my money; 
• I am investing entirely at my own risk. 

 
 
 
 
          
Date     Signature of Purchaser 
 
 
          
     Print Name of Purchaser 
 
    
Name of salesperson  
acting on behalf of the seller 
 
Sign two copies of this document.  Keep one for your records. 
 
 
 
 
National Instrument 45-106  Prospectus and Registration Exemptions may require you to sign an additional risk 
acknowledgement form. 
 
If you want advice about the merits of this investment and whether these securities are a suitable investment for you, 
contact a registered adviser or dealer. 
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